aAam

" ,,ymsm:mpaﬂ?ﬂ” Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
Alva anization City of Albany « City of Jefferson « City of Millersburg « City of Tangent « Linn County «

planning 09

Benton County » Oregon Department of Transportation

Policy Board Meeting
Wednesday, March 26, 2025
2:30 pm to 4:30 pm

VIRTUAL MEETING:
Via Teams by Clicking HERE

Meeting ID: 266 480 562 941
Passcode: KZ2Ef3bp

Mobile One Click Number

+1 872 242 8088
Phone Conference ID: 258 380 213#
Contact: Billy McGregor, bmcgrecor@ocwcog.orq

AGENDA
1) 2:30 Call to Order, Agenda Review, and Roll Call Chair,
Commissioner
Malone
2) 2:40 Public Comments Chair
3) 2:45 Approve minutes of AAMPO Board Meeting on February 26, Chair
2025. (Attachment A)
Action: Decision on minutes
4) 2:50 MPO 101 (Attachment B) Staff, Billy
Introductions of MPO staff, what is an MPO, and New Member McGregor
Orientation.
Action: Information
5) 3:00 Salem Ave Task 500 Draft Scope of Work (Attachment C) Staff, McGregor
A draft scope of work being presented to the AAMPO TAC with a
request for technical assistance and direction from members with
engineering and project planning experience.
Action: Approval
6) 3:10 STIP Full Amendments (Attachment D) Staff, McGregor

Full Amendments are brought to the TAC before going to the
Policy Board for final approval. Amendments are (preemptive) for
projects 21862 and 2385.

Action: Decision on Preemptive Amendment

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. Sign language, interpreter services or other
accommodations can also be provided by contacting Ashlyn Muzechenko at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Ashlyn
can be reached at amuzechenko@ocwcog.org. 1



mailto:amuzechenko@ocwcog.org
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_Zjc4NWJhODUtNTY4Zi00N2YxLThjM2MtZGI4MmZjZmEyYTk1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224e297dfb-957b-48f2-8e72-8881c7f18bc0%22%7d
tel:+18722428088,,258380213
mailto:bmcgrecor@ocwcog.org

7) 315

Public Participation Plan, Public Review (Attachment E)
The Joint AAMPO/CAMPO Public Participation Plan is ready for
review by the AAMPO TAC and Policy Board. Draft is included
and will be reviewed publicly during this meeting. Please email
staff with any comments.

Action: Review and Pre-Approval

Staff, McGregor

8) 3:25 FY26 Unified Planning Work Program Review (Attachment F) Staff, McGregor
Staff are drafting the FY 2026 UPWP and would like additional
workplan guidance from the TAC. Draft is included and will be
reviewed publicly during this meeting. ODOT UPWP review took
place on 2/21/2025.
Action: Approval
9) 3:35 Policy Board Meeting Time Staff, McGregor
Discussion regarding current AAMPO Policy Board meeting time.
Action: Discussion
10) 3:45 AAMPO FY25 In-Kind Match Update Staff, McGregor
Staff update of current AAMPO Match progress. Requirement
goal of $17,027.69.
Action: Information
11) 3:50  Jurisdictional Updates/Other Business All
o Staff * Albany
* Benton County * Jefferson
* Linn County * Millersburg
* Tangent * ODOT
12) 4:30 Adjournment Chair
Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 23, 2025. This meeting will be
virtual only.
AAMPO FY’25 In-Kind Match Tracker
Group Meetings Time Match
Policy Board 6/6 76 $3,338.66
TAC 6/8 62 $5,535.84
Loop, AAMPO Half 1 24 $867.45
ATS Match - - $4,000
Additional Time - 9.75 $675.24
Totals 12/14 171.75 $14,417.19




ATTENDENCE (FOR QUORUM PURPOSES)

Board Members Jurisdiction Attendance
Councilor Walt Perry City of Jefferson

Councilor Ray Hunt City of Millersburg

Councilor Carolyn McLeod City of Albany

Councilor Greg Jones City of Tangent

Commissioner Roger Nyquist Linn County

Commissioner Pat Malone, Benton County

Chair

Darrin Lane Citizen Representative

Christine Hildebrant Oregon Department of Transportation
Alternates Jurisdiction Attendance
VACANT City of Jefferson

Andrew Potts City of Millersburg

Councilor Michael Thomson City of Albany

Joe Samaniego City of Tangent

Daineal Malone Linn County

Gary Stockhoff Benton County

James Feldmann Oregon Department of Transportation

Quorum Requirement: MPO business may be conducted provided a quorum of the Policy Board is in attendance. A quorum consists
of at least four members of the Policy Board or their alternates. The Policy Board members may patrticipate telephonically or by other
means of electronic communication as provided in Section 6.D (Special or Emergency Meetings).

— AAMPO Policy Board Bylaws, Section 6: Meeting, Subsection E: Quorum



Attachment A

ALBANY METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION
POLICY BOARD VIRTUAL MEETING

Wednesday, February 26, 2025

2:30 — 4:30 pm

Via Microsoft Teams Technologies
Board Members Jurisdiction Attendance
Walt Perry City of Jefferson No
Councilor Mike Hickam City of Millersburg No
VACANT City of Albany VACANT
Greg Jones City of Tangent Yes
Commissioner Roger Nyquist | Linn County No
Commissioner Pat Malone Benton County Yes
Darrin Lane Citizen Representative Yes
Christine Hildebrant Oregon Department of Transportation | Yes
Alternates Jurisdiction Attendance
VACANT City of Jefferson VACANT
Andrew Potts City of Millersburg Yes
Chris Cerklewski City of Albany No
Joe Samaniego City of Tangent No
Daineal Malone Linn County No
Gary Stockhoff Benton County No
James Feldmann Oregon Department of Transportation | Yes

Guests: Steve Harvey
Staff Present: AAMPO Planner Billy McGregor, CAMPO Planner Corum Ketchum, Planning Manager Matt Lehman, and
Administrative Assistant Ashlyn Muzechenko



TOPIC

DISCUSSION

DECISION / CONCLUSION

1. Call to Order, Agenda
Review,
and Roll Call

The February AAMPO Policy Board meeting was called to order at 2:34pm
by The Chair, Commissioner Pat Malone.

Staff McGregor added there will be two changes to the agenda. These
changes will include updated attachments for the Scope of work on the
Salem Ave study and an updated UPWP attachment.

The meeting was called to
order at 2:34pm by
AAMPO Chair,
Commissioner Pat Malone.

2. Vice-Chair Elections

Darrin Lane volunteered to be the vice chair for the 2025 AAMPO Policy
Board. The group approved of the nomination and the motion carried by
consensus with no objections.

Darrin Lane volunteered to
be the vice chair for the
2025 AAMPO Policy
Board. The group
approved of the
nomination and the
motion carried by
consensus.

3. Public Comments

There were no public comments shared with the AAMPO Policy Board and
guests in attendance.

There were no public
comments.

4. Approve minutes of
the AAMPO Policy
Board Meeting of
January 22, 2025
(Attachment A)

Action: Decision on
Minutes

The AAMPO Policy Board members approved of the AAMPO Policy Board
minutes from January 22, 2025, by consensus with no corrections or
adjustments.

The AAMPO Policy Board
members approved the
AAMPO Policy Board
minutes from January 22,
2025, by consensus with
no corrections or
adjustments.

5. MPO 101
(Attachment B)

Action: Informational

McGregor shared the new AAMPO members are not in attendance tonight
so this item will be moved to the March Meeting.

6. STIP Full
Amendments
(Attachment C)

Action: Discussion and
Decision

McGregor shared Attachment C, which covers the new TIP policy for
AAMPO. The revision types or either full amendments or administrative
amendments which are in line with the ODOT and federal process.

The first two full amendments are for the city of Millersburg, which cover
projects 23850 and 23851 relating to funding for the Transition Parkway
project. The goal is to add a new project to the existing one, they will add
new immediate opportunity funds to the project. Both create construction

The AAMPO Policy Board
members in attendance
approved the first to
amendments by
consensus.

The AAMPO Policy Board
members in attendance
approved the second set




phases to the project.

Andrew Potts provided a short summary of the two projects these
amendments relate too.

The next two full amendments are for the Linn-Benton Loop and covers
projects relating moving funding from the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 capital
projects fund to operational funding for Fiscal year 2026’s budget.

The AAMPO Policy Board members in attendance approved the first to
amendments by consensus.

The AAMPO Policy Board members in attendance approved the second set
of amendments by consensus.

of amendments by
consensus.

7. Salem Ave Task 500
Draft Scope of work
(Attachment D)

Action: Approval of
Deobligating funds

McGregor shared this is one of the amended agenda items with the
updated attachment. The updated document shows changes presented by
the TAC whose meeting was the day after the Policy Board packet was sent
out in accordance with Public Meeting Law requirements.

In the packets, the original scope of work proposed had a short green
section and a blue section that goes all the way through Millersburg. During
the TAC meeting, the members approved the study area to be the full
segment and removed the option of the short section. This is the reasoning
as to why there was an update made to the packet.

Darrin Lane verified the change where Linn County would be included in the
project as they own most of the road in this study.

Lane asked about resolving issues with the match requirements for the
planning funds.

McGregor answered that yes it will as the match funding will be obligated
and moved to this project which will reduce the match requirement for next
fiscal year.

Lane noted the blue line does not include the ODOT right of way that goes
under the freeway.

The AAMPO Policy Board
members in attendance
approved via consensus
to deobligate the project
funds and put them
towards the Salem Ave
Scoping Study.




McGregor shared this is intentional, as those sections will be included in the
scope of work but are not shown in blue as they are specifically referenced
in the text.

The AAMPO Policy Board members in attendance approved via consensus
to deobligate the project funds and put them towards the Salem Ave
Scoping Study. The motion carried successfully with no corrections.

8. Public Participation
Plan, Public Review
(Attachment E)

Action: Information and
Discussion

McGregor shared a quick recap of the public participation plan’s public
outreach period. This item has been covered over the last couple of months
and is one of the joint MPO plans to adopt and decrease the duplicative
processes and paperwork. This process has been done with the Title VI
plan as well which is the parent plan for this one up for review today.

The chair, Commissioner Malone, noted it would be helpful to have freight
interest represented as well as Oregon State University, and the airports. It
also may be helpful to have their direct contact information as well for
important meetings where items that are relevant can be notified and
attended.

The AAMPO Policy Board Members in attendance approved the PPP
(Attachment E) as presented pending the completion of the public comment
period.

The AAMPO Policy Board
Members in attendance
approved the PPP
(Attachment E) as
presented pending the
completion of the public
comment period.

9. FY26 Unified
Planning Work
Program Review
(Attachment F)

Action: Discussion

McGregor shared the updated FY26 UPWP which is Attachment F in the
packet. McGregor noted the TAC and Federal/State partner updates as
reviewed last week after the meeting agenda packet was sent out.

McGregor summarized each of the funding tasks and their descriptions for
the members and guests in attendance.

AAMPO Staff will bring an amended UPWP to the policy board next month
which shows the change in deobligated funds and special project pool
carryover. This will also reduce the AAMPO match requirement for the fiscal
year.

The AAMPO Policy Board members in attendance approved of the FY26
UPWP by consensus with the highlighted changes made. The motion

The AAMPO Policy Board
members in attendance
approved of the FY26
UPWP by consensus with
the highlighted changes.
The motion carried
successfully.




carried successfully.

10. Appointing
Representatives to
Statewide Groups

Action: Request for
Volunteers

Annually the AAMPO Policy board must appoint members to serve as
AAMPQO’s representatives for these statewide groups which are the Linn-
Benton Loop and the Oregon Metropolitan Planning Consortium (OMPOC).

The AAMPO Policy Board members advised to reach out to the city of
Albany’s reps and see which one of the three should continue to serve on
the Loop Board for representation of AAMPO. The group noted they
approve of whichever decision is made between the three Albany
representatives.

Commissioner Malone provided background on the OMPOC meetings and
representatives.

Lane asked if there could be significant discussions with OMPOC and
ODOT on how those funds are distributed to the MPOs.

Commissioner Malone agreed and noted it is hard to say what information
would be available, but it is a great opportunity to bring people together to
compare notes and other updates.

Lane noted he will volunteer to be the AAMPO representative over the next
year if there isn’t someone who is interested.

Staff will follow up with Joe Samaniego, the previous year’s representative,
and Darrin Lane to see who will be AAMPQO’s designated member to
OMPOC.

The AAMPO Policy Board
members advised to reach
out to the city of Albany’s
reps and see which one of
the three should continue
to serve on the Loop
Board for representation
of AAMPO. The group
noted they approve of
whichever decision is
made between the three
Albany representatives.

Staff will follow up with
Joe Samaniego, the
previous year’s
representative, and Darrin
Lane to see who will be
AAMPOQO’s designated
member to OMPOC.

11. AAMPO FY25 In-Kind
Match Update

Action: Information and
Discussion

McGregor provided an update to the AAMPO FY25 In Kind Match Tracker:

AAMPO FY’25 In-Kind Match Tracker

Group Meetings Time Match
Policy Board 6/6 76 $3,338.66
TAC sI7 52 $4,668.86
Loop, AAMPO Half n 24 $867.45
ATS Match $4,000
Additional Time - 9.75 $675.24
Totals 911 110.25 $13,550.21




12. Jurisdictional
Updates/Other
Business

AAMPO Staff Updates:

CAMPO Planner Corum Ketchum provided further information on the
NACTO event happening this fall. More information can be found at this
link: https://nacto.org/publication/urban-bikeway-design-quide/.

Jurisdictional Updates:
Albany — There were no members form the city of Albany present to provide
updates.

Benton County — The Chair, Commissioner Malone, noted the county has
seen about a mile of pavement completed on the Corvallis to Albany path.
Additionally, SW 53" street in Corvallis is currently flooded and continues to
flood when it rains. This afternoon, the road finally opened after being
closed for the past 4 days.

Jefferson — There were no members from the city of Jefferson present to
provide updates.

Linn County — Darrin Lane shared for the County two bridge contractors
were awarded the bridges which had been out to bid for the last little bit.
These bridge projects have been on the books for close to 25 years. Both
bids came in below the engineers’ estimate which is a good sign for
construction. Regarding the intermodal center, there are several things in
possibilities. It is currently being leased by a renewalable diesel importer,
but operations haven't started yet.

Millersburg — Andrew Potts shared transition parkway is continuing through,
and the city will be starting preliminary engineering and design work for
Woods Road soon as well. The Cox creek Waverly drive bridge will be
going near talking water gardens as well and is being administered by Linn
County and was recently approved by the Linn County Commissioners.

Tangent — Greg Jones shared there is a TSP meeting for city tomorrow
afternoon, but there is no current construction projects set up for Tangent at
this time.

ODOT - Christine Hildebrant shared there is still uncertainty at the federal
level for the STIP. For funding obligations, the only freeze is for grants and
EVs. The STIP amendments that are administrative can continue. The FTA



https://nacto.org/publication/urban-bikeway-design-guide/

amendments are on hold. FHWA will need to be approved by the state
office and the headquarters office too. There is a live website for the
updates as well which can be found here:
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https % 3A%2F % 2F www.
oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-
Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.go
v%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4ab648d861
c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTW
FpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIIYiOilwLjAuMDAwWMCIsIIAIOI
JXaW4zMilslkFOljoiTWFpbClslldUljoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sd
ata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEB|ZYPB4%
3D&reserved=0. Additionally, Jefferson Bridge is currently the only live
project in the AAMPO Area.

13. Adjournment The next AAMPO Policy Board Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, The meeting was
March 26, 2025. adjourned at 4:15pm by
the Chair, Commissioner
Pat Malone.

10



https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.oregon.gov%2Fodot%2FAbout%2FPages%2FFederal-Funding-EO-Pause.aspx&data=05%7C02%7CChristine.D.Hildebrant%40odot.oregon.gov%7C72c9c8d5cec447f48ce108dd54eb7f97%7C28b0d01346bc4a648d861c8a31cf590d%7C0%7C0%7C638760092642735610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sPU2PuEevTBzpAH%2FboWPNaAN%2Bs%2FOBQnis3nEBjZYPB4%3D&reserved=0

Attachment B

., Albany Area

A/M y""

& Metropolitan Planning Association

AAMPO

AAMPO is the organization responsible AAMPO's Planning Area
for regional transportation planning in o Jefferson ¢ Marion County
the greater Albany area. AAMPO was e Millersburg e Benton County
formed in 2013 when the greater Albany area Albany e Linn County
population grew to over 50,000. The federal e Tangent

government requires all urbanized areas with

populations over 50,000 to establish a

metropolitan planning organization (MPO).

AAMPO'’s Goals
e Help coordinate transportation planning
efforts across cities and counties
e Develop short range (4 year) and long
range (20 year) transportation plans
e Help coordinate spending of state and County
federal money

AAMPO & Transportation
AAMPO plans for many different types of
transportation in the Greater Albany Area.
Sidewalk & Crosswalks
Roads & Bridges
Bicycle Lanes & Multiuse Paths
Trains & Freight
Public Transportation

Oregon Metropolitan Planning Organizations Want more AAMPO info?

e (Corvallis Area MPO e Central Lane MPO Billy McGregor
(541)924-4548
e Salem-Keizer MPO o Rogue \/alley MPO bmcgregor@ocwcog.org

e Metro (Portland area) MPO o Bend MPO wwocucog org/aamee

11


http://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/

Attachment C

Task 1: Salem Ave — Old Salem Rd Project Identification

Led by Albany, Millersburg, and Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) staff, this task will
involve a meeting with city stakeholders. The purpose of this meeting is to identify current and
well understood issues on Salem Avenue and Old Salem Road, proposed section between
intersection with Albany Avenue and Old Salem Rd interchange with I-5 (B, 4.5 miles) and
including I-5 exits at Century Drive. Additionally, each city will summarize all planned projects for
the area from the Transportation System Plan (TSP) or any other relevant plans, and provide a
summary to the Contractor, which the contractor will review to help inform project findings.

Task 1.1: Scoping Meeting.

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments/Albany Area Metropolitan Planning
Organization (OCWCOG/AAMPO) and the consultant will meet to clarify the larger scope of the
services needed, including the projected tasks below.

Task 1.2: Existing Conditions and Design Review.

The consultant will review existing documents relevant to the corridor including long range plans,
regulatory design documents, travel demand model outputs, and current traffic volume
information that is available. This task will involve meeting with ODOT regional planning and
design staff to hear their design constraints and considerations. An important part of this task will
be clarifying the controlling design criteria, and estimated future mode volumes that will impact
design.

Task 1.3: Conceptual Design Solution

As defined by the Cities of Albany and Millersburg in coordination with ODOT and Linn County,
the consultant will develop schematic plans and cross sections, to a degree of detail that can be
shared with staff, elected officials and members of the public can understand the suggested
improvements to the corridor.

Task 1.4: Public Open House

The consultant will participate in two public open houses to share solutions identified in the
previous task. OCWCOG/AAMPO staff will be responsible for managing, advertising, hosting and
running the open house. Consultant will be available to answer technical details. This is expected
to be held virtually, during one working day session and one evening session.

Task 1.5 Summary Memo and Presentation

Consultant will develop a summary memo of the conceptual design process, public open houses,
and any subsequential changes to the corridor concepts. This memo will include potential funding
opportunities to pursue for more detailed design and construction. OCWCOG/AAMPO will provide
a public input summary. The consultant will present this information to the AAMPO Policy Board,
which can be attended virtually.

Task 1.6 Other

Depending on budget availability and items that may arise in previous tasks, this task will be used
to capture work that does not fit into other tasks. It will be used as needed and only under approval
by OCWCOG/AAMPO Policy Board at the advisement of the AAMPO Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC).

12



Figure 1+2. ODOT road ownership, shown in blue and green
Figure 1. Millersburg I-5 Interchange with Old Salem Rd
Figure 2. Old Salem Rd Intersection/Junction with Century Dr

./.

= = |- [
= Al ]
1 | | iy
| i
o
. G E
' |
: ]
I. .EI
o
w
z
T |
i |
| [ ]
|;|
: H{IJIersh rg
A L £
7/
// ¥
|'=.
: i
= o
< L
¥ F" .
(4]
=
r s

SCOTT AVE NE

KIZER AVE ME

3N Y AHLYOMMIN

aM ‘0d AHLHOMMNIA

13



Figure 3. Proposed SOW Section B from intersection of Albany Ave and Salem Ave to interchange of Old Salem Rd and I-5,
in blue

14



Attachment D
MEMORANDUM

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization ‘ Fﬂ

City of Albany - City of Jefferson « City of Millersburg « City of Tangent « Linn County *
Benton County « Oregon Department of Transportation

Mel
pany Ared WP
A/F/a::iiﬂg argamzat/an

Date: March 26, 2025
To: AAMPO Policy Board
From: Billy McGregor, AAMPO Staff
Re: Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Revisions

Action Requested

Request for preemptive approval for changes in budget to KN 21862 FY’25 and KN 22858 FY’26 AAMPO UPWP
budgets requiring deobligation of FY’25 Task 500 Special Projects funds ($90,000) and applying those to FY’26
Special Projects funds. The amendment process with ODOT is ongoing and requires several more authoritative
levels of approval before being entered into the STIP. To ensure that this deobligation of funds can occur before
the end of the Fiscal Year this is being brought to both the AAMPO TAC and Policy Board, as well as starting the
public comment period, preemptively so that staff may approve the STIP amendment as expeditiously as
possible.

Overview

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an update on recent revisions to the Statewide Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP) relevant to the Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO). A
summary table of recent revisions can be found on the following page.

Background on the STIP and MTIP

The STIP is the Oregon Department of Transportation’s capital improvement plan for state and federally-funded
transportation projects. The current STIP (FY2024-2027) went into effect October 1, 2023 and expires
September 30, 2027. AAMPO acts as the regional coordinator to the STIP helping ensure that revisions and other
adjustments are processed appropriately. AAMPO also maintains a Metropolitan Transportation Improvement
Program (MTIP) which is consistent with the STIP.

Revision Types
There are three types of STIP and MTIP revisions processed by AAMPO, listed below. Additional details on STIP
and MTIP amendments can be found in the AAMPO MTIP policy HERE.

e Full Amendments: Require the greatest level of scrutiny and are brought to the Policy Board for
discussion and approval. The TAC makes a recommendation to the Policy Board regarding approval of
the amendment and also determines what level public outreach is necessary. At a minimum, the item
will be reviewed by the TAC and placed on the next Policy Board agenda, which comes with notification
requirements. Additional items for consideration include provision of a public comment period (two
weeks), holding a public meeting, and any other actions deemed advisable by the TAC.

e Administrative Amendment: Require less scrutiny and are usually familiar to local staff members. For
administrative amendments AAMPO staff has the authority to approve the amendment. Amendments
are brought to the TAC for review and discussion. The Policy Board is notified of Administrative
Amendments at their next regularly scheduled meeting.

AAMPO is staffed by the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments / 1400 Queen Ave SE, Suite 205 Albany OR 97322 / (541) 967-8551 15


https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-plans-programs/

This Page Left Blank Intentionally

See Attachment C for Project Details
See Attachment F for MPO Budget

16



Attachment E

Joint Public Participation Plan
Adopted
April XXth, 2025

and
April XXt 2025

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning
Organization

Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning
Organization

Compliance with Federal Requirements under 49 CFR Part
21 and 23 CFR Part 200 & 450.316

and

Oregon Public Meetings Law

17



Adopting Resolution
Add here

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

18



AAMPO-CAMPO Contacts List

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Membership

Policy Board
Pat Malone Benton County
Vacant City of Albany
Christine Hildebrant oDoT
Walt Perry City of Jefferson
Darrin Lane Citizen Representative
Ray Hunt City of Millersburg
Roger Nyquist Linn County
Greg Jones City of Tangent
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
Chris Cerklewski City of Albany
Andrew Potts City of Millersburg
Joe Samaniego City of Tangent
James Feldmann oDoT
Daineal Malone Linn County
David Watkins City of Jefferson
Gary Stockhoff Benton County
TAC Ex-Officio Members
Jasmine Harris FHWA, Transportation Planner
Ashley Bryers FHWA, AAMPO/CAMPO Rep
Mary Camarata DEQ, Regional Solutions Team Coordinator
Danielle Casey FTA, MPO/Planning Specialist
Staff

Matthew Lehman, Transportation Manager
Billy McGregor, Transportation Planner
Ashlyn Muzechenko, Executive Administrative Assistant

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
Community and Economic Development Department
541-924-8480

1400 Queen Ave SE, Suite 205, Albany, OR 97322

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

19



AAMPO-CAMPO Contacts List

Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Membership

Policy Board
Pat Hare City of Adair Village
Jan Napack City of Corvallis
Rich Saalsaa City of Philomath
Pat Malone Benton County

Christine Hildebrant oDoT
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

Chris Workman City of Philomath

Gary Stockhoff Benton County

Rory Rowan City of Corvallis

James Feldman oboT

Pat Hare City of Adair Village

Rebecca Houghtaling Oregon State University

Barry Hoffman Albany Transit/ Linn-Benton Loop
TAC Ex-Officio Members

Jasmine Harris FHWA, Transportation Planner

Ashley Bryers FHWA, AAMPO/CAMPO Rep

Danielle Casey FTA, Transportation Program Specialist

Mary Camarata DEQ, Regional Solutions Team Coordinator

Patrick Wingard DLCD, Regional Representative

Mark Bernard ODOT, Region 2 Principal Planner

Cody Franz ODOT, Regional Transit Coordinator
Staff

Matthew Lehman, Transportation Manager
Corum Ketchum, Transportation Planner
Ashlyn Muzechenko, Executive Administrative Assistant

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments
Community and Economic Development Department
541-924-8480

1400 Queen Ave SE, Suite 205, Albany, OR 97322

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025



Chapter 1: Introduction

Chapter 1: Introduction

What is an MPO?

A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPQO) is an organization of local governments
designated per 23 USC and 23 CFR 450 to provide transportation planning and programming in
areas with a collective population of 50,000 or over, termed as an Urbanized Area. As a
condition for receiving federal transportation dollars, MPOs must have a continuing, cooperative
and comprehensive transportation planning process in cooperation with their state Department
of Transportation.

In accordance with federal regulations, the functions and responsibilities of MPOs include
development of an annual Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), an annual list of obligated
projects, a 4-year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), a long-range Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP), and a Public Participation Plan (PPP). MPOs must also demonstrate
compliance with Title VI and other nondiscrimination requirements.

What is the Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO)?

The Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) serves as the metropolitan
planning organization for the Albany Urbanized Area, as designated by the Governor of Oregon
on February 6", 2013. As designated, the AAMPO Planning Area covers the Albany Urbanized
Area, which is composed of the cities of Albany, Jefferson, Millersburg, and Tangent as well as
adjacent parts of Linn and Benton Counties. AAMPO is governed by an eight-member Policy
Board consisting of elected representatives from each city or county, as well as a staff person
from ODOT. The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), under a
contract with the AAMPO Policy Board, provides administrative services and staffing to AAMPO.

What is the Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPQO)?

The Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPOQO) serves as the metropolitan
planning organization for the Corvallis Urbanized Area, as designated by the Oregon Governor
in December 2002. CAMPO is comprised of the Cities of Adair Village, Corvallis, Philomath,
parts of Benton County, and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT). CAMPO is
governed by a five-member Policy Board consisting of elected representatives from each city or
county, as well as a staff person from ODOT. The Oregon Cascades West Council of
Governments (OCWCOG), under a contract with the CAMPO Policy Board, provides
administrative services and staffing to CAMPO.

What is the Purpose of the Public Participation Plan?

The purpose of this document is to outline the policies and procedures adopted by the AAMPO
and CAMPO Policy Boards for involving the general public in the MPO’s transportation decision-
making processes. The PPP describes methods, strategies, and desired outcomes for public
participation, addressing outreach to a broad audience of interested parties. The PPP includes
specific requirements for both Ongoing Activities (e.g. monthly meetings of the Policy Board
and Technical Advisory Committee) and Plan and Program Updates (e.g. development or
update of Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program). Plan and
program updates require the development of a specific public involvement program prior to the
commencement of the activity.

Active public involvement is a key component of an MPQO’s continuing, cooperative and
comprehensive planning effort and an integral part of transportation planning and programming

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
21



Chapter 1: Introduction

activities. Public participation in the transportation planning process allows the public the
opportunity to voice concerns and offer suggestions about transportation-related issues, while
also helping to educate the public about the technical aspects of transportation planning.
Through public participation, transportation professionals and decision-makers are afforded the
opportunity to see sides of an issue that may be missed when considering a project. Meaningful
dialog among technical professionals, local decision makers, and general stakeholders is key to
achieving consensus, which is desired before moving a project forward.

Additional benefits of public participation include:

» |dentifying issues and concerns that matter most to residents and other stakeholders
= Promoting accountability

= Developing a sense of community and ownership

= Fostering trust in the decision-making process and with decision-makers

» Ensuring that each MPO meets MPO equity goals

= Encouraging cooperation and compromise

= Preventing and/or mitigating future conflict

Federal and State Requirements for Public Participation

The Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991 mandated that “MPOs
develop and utilize a proactive public involvement process that provides complete information,
timely public notice, full public access to key decisions, and supports early and continuing
involvement of the public in developing RTPs and TIPs.” In 2005, the Safe, Accountable,
Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) expanded
these provisions to require “extensive stakeholder participation above and beyond public
involvement.” This included the requirement for MPOs to develop a formal Public Participation
Plan. The passage of Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) in 2012
reaffirmed these federal directives for public participation.

In addition to federal requirements, the State of Oregon requires public involvement in the
planning process. Oregon Statewide Planning Goal 1 is Citizen Involvement. Goal 1 requires
regional agencies to use existing local citizen involvement programs established by counties
and cities. Further, the Oregon Public Meetings Law requires that: all meetings of governing
bodies covered by the law (which include the Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee)
are open to the public; that the public be given notice of the time and place of the meetings; that
meetings be accessible to everyone, including people with disabilities; and that minutes be
made available to the public within a reasonable time that indicate the substance of the
deliberations, decisions, and reference any information upon which such decisions are made.
The public will be provided reasonable time during all public meetings to provide input, feedback
and/or recommendations.

Plan Development

Staff began the process of developing this Plan by reviewing the existing AAMPO and CAMPO
Public Participation Plans and identifying elements suitable for inclusion moving forward. Much
of the work done to develop this Plan grew out of the decision to increase MPO collaboration. In
developing this Plan, staff reviewed best practices literature on public involvement; Public
Participation Plans adopted by other MPOs in Oregon; and State and Federal requirements
related to public participation. Because the PPP will ultimately drive all future public involvement

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
22



Chapter 1: Introduction

activities for both the Albany and Corvallis MPOs, staff conducted outreach during this process
and made the Plan available for a 45-day public comment period prior to final adoption.

This plan was made available for public comment between February 10" and March 28", 2025,
according to the procedures listed in this document.

Additional details on public involvement related to the development of this Plan can be found in
Chapter 5.

What is in this Document?
» The remainder of this plan is broken into chapters that address the requirements of a
Public Participation Plan:

= Chapter 2: MPO Overview - Overview of MPO’s role and responsibilities, governance,
and membership. Outlines MPQ’s goals and objectives for public involvement.

= Chapter 3: Public Participation Process - Provides details on MPQO’s public
participation.

= Chapter 4: Inclusion of Interested Parties - Focuses on engagement activities related
to specific communities and organizations in the MPO planning area.

= Chapter 5: Outreach Activities and Evaluation - Successful evaluation of the MPO
Public Participation Plan requires tracking outreach activities. This chapter outlines
potential public involvement tools as well as tracking efforts and evaluation criteria.

= Appendices:
o Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms
o Appendix B: Transportation Glossary
o Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

o Appendix D: Spectrum of Public Participation

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
23



Chapter 1: Introduction

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

24



Chapter 2: MPO Overview

Chapter 2: MPO Overview

MPO Roles and Responsibilities

Per 23 USC, 134, 200, & 450, a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), must provide
transportation planning and programming in Urbanized Areas (areas with a collective population
of 50,000 or more.) MPOs facilitate continuing, cooperative and comprehensive transportation
planning processes in partnership with their state Department of Transportation.

The Albany and Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organizations are governed by a Policy
Board which is advised by a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The TAC is made up of
professional staff and reviews technical material and provides recommendations to the Policy
Board. The representatives of relevant federal and other state agencies have ex-officio status
on the TAC. The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), under a
contract with the Policy Board, provides staffing including fiscal and administrative support to
the MPOs.

One of the central requirements for MPOs is an inclusive decision-making process including
development and implementation of a proactive public involvement process that provides
complete information, timely public notice, full public access to key decisions, and supports
early and continuing public involvement in developing the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP),
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and other key documents. To ensure an all-
inclusive decision-making process occurs, MPOs are required to utilize Public Participation
Plans (PPPs) that are developed in consultation with an expanded list of interested parties.
Once adopted, the PPP will direct the MPQO’s public outreach activities during future planning
and programming activities.

Role of Policy Board

The Policy Board is the governing board for the MPO. The Policy Board is responsible for all
actions, agreements, and functions to be carried out by the MPO, including the management,
supervision, policy and direction of all programs, functions and activities established and
operated under the MPO. The MPO has policy and administrative responsibilities related to
federal and state transportation laws and regulations including the development of the following:

= Annual Unified Work Program (UPWP) and budget

» Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) - a long-range plan updated at least every five
years

» Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) - a short-range program of transportation
improvement projects, updated at least every two years

= Title VI / Non-discrimination Plan and related Civil Rights compliance review every
three years

» Public Participation Plan (PPP) reviewed alongside Title VI/Non-discrimination Plan

All Policy Board meetings are open to the public. All meetings are documented in minutes, with
minutes and agendas distributed via e-mail to the MPQO’s interested party list. Minutes and
agendas are also posted to each MPO websites; AAMPO at http://www.ocwcog.org/aampo,
CAMPO at https://corvallisareampo.org/.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
25


http://www.ocwcog.org/aampo
https://corvallisareampo.org/

Chapter 2: MPO Overview

Role of Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

Members of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) are appointed by the Policy Board. TAC
responsibilities are to:

Conduct technical reviews and analysis

Recommend the creation of special committees

Review, evaluate and recommend adoption of MPO policies and plans

Serve as technical resources for the Policy Board

Recommend an implementation strategy for Surface Transportation Block Grant
(State High Fund exchanged) funding

All TAC meetings are open to the public. All meetings are documented in minutes, with minutes
and agendas distributed via and e-mail to the TAC members, and TAC-interested parties.
Minutes and agendas are also posted to the MPO websites; AAMPO at
http://www.ocwcog.org/aampo, CAMPO at https://corvallisareampo.org/.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
26


http://www.aampo.org/
https://corvallisareampo.org/

Chapter 2: MPO Overview

AAMPO-CAMPO Planning Area

xC L
POLK |

Combined CAMPO

AAMPO Area Map

MPA Areas
AAMPO
E3 campo
{773 County Line
— Signed Route

— Significant Road

Council of
Governments (0] ®

99V}

20]

20

o

%

TON

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

&0@}“\

—a

12/31/2024 - Created by OCWCOG GIS



Chapter 2: MPO Overview

AAMPO Planning Area

Dever-Canner
Rd

Jefferson
SeioRd.

e —— e
OREGON CASCADES WEST

Council of
Governments

LINN

I20

Riverside

L, 5
)

AAMPO
Area Map

£ ramveo
City Limits —
[ Abany
B 3efferson
[ Millersburg
[ Tangent
2 county Line
—— Signed Route
Select Roads

" 34—

Tangent
Dr.

—a—

12/31/2024 - Created by OCWCOG GIS

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

28



Chapter 2: MPO Overview

CAMPO Planning Area

[

CAMPO
Area Map

=1 CAMPO

City Limits

[ Adair Village

[ Corvallis

o omath Corecon cascaves west ]
T2 County Line ] f
o cootnehetes
— Select Roads

0 0.5 1 2 Miles

Adair Village 5

5

Granger

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

12/31/2024 - Created by OCWCOG GIS

29



Chapter 2: MPO Overview

Organization and Governance

AAMPO is governed by an eight-member Policy Board consisting of elected representatives
from the cities of Albany, Jefferson, Millersburg, and Tangent; Linn and Benton Counties; and a
staff person from the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT). AAMPOQO'’s staffing --
including administrative, bookkeeping, and computer services-- are performed by the Oregon
Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) under a contract with the Policy Board.
OCWCOG staff dedicated to AAMPO activities are located in the Community and Economic
Development Department (CED). AAMPO is governed independently of OCWCOG through the
Policy Board.

CAMPO is governed by a five-member Policy Board consisting of elected representatives from
the cities of Adair Village, Corvallis, Philomath, and Benton County, as well as a staff person
from ODOT. CAMPQO'’s staffing --including administrative, bookkeeping, and computer services--
are performed by the OCWCOG under a contract with the Policy Board. OCWCOG staff
dedicated to CAMPO activities are located in CED. CAMPO is governed independently of
OCWCOG through the Policy Board.

Figure 1: Organization Chart

Executive Director:
Ryan Vogt
HR Director:
Ryan Schulze

Oregon Cascades
West Council of
Governments

CED Director:
Jaclyn Disney
CED ADA Coordinator:
Vacant

Community and
Economic

Development

Transportation Mngr:
Matthew Lehman

Transportation Planner
& Title VI Coordinator: AAMPO/CAMPO

Billy McGregor & Corum
Ketchum

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
30



Chapter 3: Public Participation Process

Chapter 3: Public Participation Process

Both MPOs strive for an all-inclusive public process consistent with the provisions of Federal
Highway Administration (FHWA) Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 450 (23 CFR 450)
and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 49 CFR 613 as retained and amended by SAFETEA-
LU and MAP-21. Both will, at a minimum, take the following actions to “ensure early and
continuing involvement of the public in developing plans and TIPs”, in accordance with 23 CFR
450 and 49 CFR 613.

Coordination & Consultation

Consult with agencies and officials responsible for other planning activities within the
planning area that will be affected by transportation in the development of MPO plans
and programs, such as the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP).This includes Tribal governments and Federal land
management agencies, as applicable.

Develop coordination protocols between both MPOs, the Cascades West Area
Commission on Transportation and the Mid-Willamette Valley Area Commission on
Transportation

Coordinate with statewide transportation agencies on their public involvement and
consultation processes

Accessibility & Information

Hold public meetings at convenient and accessible locations and times

Hold virtual (on-line) public meetings in accessible formats and at accessible times.
Facilitate meetings such that they replicate, as best possible, interactions and learning
that takes place at in-person meetings

Make public information available in electronically accessible format, this can include
video recordings and documents

Provide reasonable public access to technical and policy information used in the
development of plans and programs

Employ visualization techniques to describe RTPs and TIPs

Timeliness

Provide timely information about transportation issues and processes to all stakeholders,
including affected public agencies, private providers of transportation, and other
interested parties and segments of the community affected by transportation plans,
programs, and projects

Provide adequate public notice of public involvement activities and time for public review
and comment

Public Comment

Demonstrate explicit consideration and response to public input received during the
development of the RTP and TIP

Provide an additional opportunity for public comment if the final RTP or TIP differs
significantly from the version that was initially made available for comment

Make available a report or summary on the disposition of significant written or oral
comments received on draft plans and programs. If appropriate this may be included as
part of the final plan or program

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

31



Chapter 3: Public Participation Process

Social (includes Environmental) Justice
= Seek out and consider the needs of those traditionally underserved by existing
transportation systems, including low-income and minority households, persons with
disabilities, and the senior population
= Implement the MPQO'’s Title VI / Nondiscrimination Plan, review the Plan annually

Evaluation
= At a minimum of every three years, fully review the effectiveness of the Public
Participation Plan to ensure a full and open participation process. An abbreviated
document review will be conducted annually

Virtual Public Engagement

In addition to the actions listed above, the MPOs are also committed to expanding public
participation opportunities through virtual public engagement. Virtual public engagement is a
toolset for expanding public engagement efforts beyond traditional outlets. Virtual public
engagement includes virtual (on-line) open houses, outreach through social media, video
recordings, ArcGIS StoryMaps, and other tools that can be engaged with on-line.

Virtual public engagement is not new; however, the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
has further underlined the valuable role virtual public engagement can play in gathering public
input. Both MPOs intend to continue using virtual public engagement in the future, pairing virtual
public engagement with more traditional in-person engagement methods. A mixed strategy
approach to public engagement allows more community members to participate in the planning
process.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
32



Chapter 4: Inclusion of Interested Parties

Chapter 4: Inclusion of Interested Parties

CFR 24 U.S.C. 134 defines interested parties as follows: citizens, affected public agencies,
representatives of public transportation employees, freight shippers, providers of freight
transportation services, private providers of transportation, representatives of users of public
transportation, representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation
facilities, representatives of the disabled and other interested parties.

Contact lists of “interested parties” are maintained for each MPO Policy Board and Technical
Advisory Committee. Anyone interested in being added to the interested party list of any of the
MPO committees may do so by contacting MPO staff.

In addition to members of the general public who provide valuable input, the MPO’s have
identified the following stakeholder groups as important participants in the public participation
process for MPO plans and programs.

Minority and Low Income Populations

Environmental Justice Considerations and Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act (42 U.S.C.
2000d-1) states that "No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or
national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance." Title VI bars
intentional discrimination as well as disparate impact discrimination (i.e., a neutral policy or
practice that has a disparate impact on protected groups).

The federal Executive Orders pertaining to Environmental Justice (EJ) further amplify Title VI by
providing that "each Federal agency shall make achieving environmental justice part of its
mission by identifying and addressing, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse
human health or environmental effects of its programs, policies, and activities on minority
populations and low-income populations."

To ensure full compliance with Title VI and the Environmental Justice Order, both MPOs
maintain a Joint Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan, outlining actions the MPO takes to engage
minority and low-income populations in transportation decision making. The Joint Title VI
Nondiscrimination Plan is directly related to public participation and is considered a key part of
the MPQO'’s overall public involvement framework.

Seniors and Persons with Disabilities

The needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities are important factors when planning and
building a transportation system. For planning purposes, the MPO defines a “senior” as: a
person 60 years of age or older (persons eligible for Albany Transit Call-A Ride transportation
services and eligible for Senior/Disabled fare). The ADA defines a person with a disability as a
person who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life
activity. Organizations or individuals representing these populations can be included on MPO
contact lists, and may be represented on MPO committees.

Transportation Providers

These stakeholders include public and private agencies representing transit (fixed-route,
shared-ride, paratransit, intracity) and freight (rail, truck, air,) interests. Organizations
representing these interests may be included on MPO contact lists and represented on MPO
committees.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
33



Chapter 4: Inclusion of Interested Parties

Federal, State, Regional & Local Government Agencies

In order to comply with Federal and State regulations and to be consistent with the planning
processes of State and local entities, MPO staff regularly consult with the Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) through reviews and
committee meetings, and by e-mail and phone as work products are drafted and reviewed. In
addition there may be one or more ex-officio (non-voting) members from FHWA and Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) on the Technical Advisory Committee.

Other agencies involved in the process, but not necessarily on a regular basis, include business
and freight representatives.

Regional and local municipal agencies are represented on both MPO Policy Boards and MPO
subcommittees.

Stakeholder/Special Interest Groups

These groups offer differing opinions on the need for and scope of transportation services and
facilities in the region. These groups that may be invited into the process include, but are not
limited to:

Local neighborhood and environmental organizations

Chambers of Commerce

Albany-Millersburg Economic Development Corporation (AMEDC)
Corvallis-Benton County Economic Development Office

School districts

Mid-Willamette Valley Bike Club

Corvallis Sustainability Coalition —Transportation Action Team
Albany Transportation Advisory Committee

Other bicycle and pedestrian advocates

Transit Dependent Persons

Persons experiencing homelessness

Oregon State University students, faculty, staff and other interested parties
Representatives of freight interests

Solicit additions from applicable boards

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
34



Chapter 5: Outreach Activities and Tools

Chapter 5: Outreach Activities and Tools

Both MPOs use a variety of methods to inform
and engage the public during the planning,
update, and amendment of plans and programs.
The type of engagement tool used and the
degree to which the public are encouraged to be
involved depends on the planning activity that is
taking place.

Successful evaluation of the effectiveness of the
public participation plan requires tracking
outreach activities and establishing initial
baseline measurements. Reasonable effort will
be made to regularly evaluate the MPQO'’s efforts

The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
greatly limited in-person engagement
activities. The MPOs adjusted by increasing
focus on virtual engagement tools, such as
webinars, online mapping, and additional
social media posts. Both MPOs intend to
continue virtual engagement post COVID-19
in recognition that a combination of virtual
and in-person engagement allows for the

most participation.
to engage the public. Potential public P P
involvement tools and related tracking or
evaluation criteria are listed in the table below.
Public Involvement Tools and Use
Public Involvement When is Tool Used? MPO'’s Approach

Tool

Email Announcements,
Master Contact Database/
Email List

TAC meeting announcements
Policy Board meeting
announcements

Updates and announcements
about MPO Plans and Programs
(e.g. RTP, TIP, UPWP, etc.)

Increase e-mail list by
advertising the availability of
e-mail announcements
using (Sign up for email via
MPO Website)

Make corrections when e-
mails are returned

Website/ Social Media

TAC meeting announcements
Policy Board meeting
announcements

Updates and announcements
about MPO Plans and Programs
(e.g. RTP, TIP, UPWP, etc.)
Public notice for TIP
amendments

General MPO updates

Include website address on
all organization products
Link website to partner
organizations

Utilize social media outlets
available through OCWCOG
or member organizations
including paid ads as
appropriate

Public Service
Announcements (PSA)

This tool is used to provide
information on meetings,
planning documents, and
pending transportation policy
decisions when appropriate

Request PSAs be run by
local radio, TV, print and
other media outlets

Newspaper Advertisements
and Legal Advertisements

Updates and announcements
about MPO Plans and Programs
(e.g. RTP, TIP, UPWP, etc.)
Meeting announcements when
major decisions will be
considered by the TAC or Policy
Board

Place publication in
prominent location of paper
if possible

Post notice in publications
that reach underserved
populations

Press Releases

This tool is used to provide
information on meetings,
planning documents, and

Maintain a current media
contact list

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

35



Chapter 5: Outreach Activities and Tools

pending transportation policy
decisions when appropriate

Utilize press releases to
encourage media coverage

Direct Mailings

This tool is used to provide
information on meetings,
planning documents, and
pending transportation policy
decisions when appropriate

Adjust mailing list to more
accurately target affected
areas

Use the most up-to-date
information to maintain the
mailing list

Flyers/Posters

This tool is used to provide
information on meetings,
planning documents, and
pending transportation policy
decisions when appropriate

Increase distribution to
common areas where
posters will be more visible
to the general public

Open Houses/ Public

Workshops, Speakers
Bureau/ Small Group

Meetings

This tool is used to provide
information on updates to plans
and programs as well as pending
transportation policy decisions

The presentation should
provide specific information
introducing and outlining the
project or program

MPO staff should utilize this
tool when launching major
project or program updates
or when public input is
needed

MPO staff and any
consulting staff should be
available in a timely manner
to make presentations about
MPO activities when
requested

MPO staff attending and
providing updates to
partner agencies and
stakeholder during their
regularly scheduled
meetings

This tool is used to update
partner agencies and
stakeholders on MPO activities
during their regularly scheduled
meeting time

MPO staff should utilize this
tool to provide informal
updates on MPO activities
When appropriate, this
outreach tool may include
formal presentations on
MPO projects and programs

Planning Document
Distribution

This tool is used to garner input
on updates to MPO Plans and
Programs (e.g. RTP, TIP,
UPWP, etc.)

Build distribution list to
include key partners
including member cities,
Benton County, and local
school districts

Build distribution list to
include county and city
government buildings,
libraries and websites

Comment Forms

This tool is used to garner input
on a broad range of MPO plans
and activities

Encourage responses by
explaining the importance of
receiving comments

Graphics/ Visualization

Used to provide information on
MPO plans, programs and
pending transportation policy
decisions

Policy Board and TAC meetings

Include graphics and
visualization techniques
online and during public
meetings and hearings

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

36



Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms

Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms

3-C —Continuing, Comprehensive and Cooperative Planning Process
3R —Resurfacing, restoring, and rehabilitating

AAMPO -Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
AASHO —-American Association of State Highway Officials
AASHTO —American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
ACT-Area Commission on Transportation

ADA —Americans with Disabilities Act

ADT —Average Daily Traffic (or Average Daily trips)

AMPO —Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations

APA —American Planning Association

APTA —American Public Transportation Association

ARBA —American Road Builders' Association

ARMA —American Road Makers' Association

ARRA —-American Recovery and Reinvestment Act

ARTBA —American Road and Transportation Builders' Association
ATS —Albany Transit System

BMP- Best Management Practice
BMS- Bridge Management System
BRT- Bus Rapid Transit

BTS- Bureau of Transportation Statistics

CAA- Clean Air Act

CAA(A)- Clean Air Act Amendments

CALM- Corvallis Albany Lebanon Model

CAMPO- Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
CFR- Code of Federal Regulations

CIP- Capital Improvement Program

CMAQ- Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program
CMP- Congestion Management Process (Plan)

CMS- Congestion Management System

COG- Council of Governments

CTS- Corvallis Transit System

CWACT- Cascades West ACT

DEIS- Draft Environment Impact Statement

DEQ- Department of Environmental Quality

DLCD- Department of Land Conservation and Development
DOT- Department of Transportation

EEO- Equal Employment Opportunity
EIS- Environmental Impact Statement
EJ- Environmental Justice

EPA- Environmental Protection Agency

FAA- Federal Aviation Administration
FAP- Federal-aid primary

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

37



Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms

FAS- Federal-aid secondary

FAU- Federal-aid urban

FAUB- Federal-aid Urban Boundary
FEIS- Final Environmental Impact Statement
FFC- Federal Functional Classification
FHWA- Federal Highway Administration
FONSI- Finding of No Significant Impact
FRA- Federal Railroad Administration
FTA- Federal Transit Administration
FFY- Federal Fiscal Year

FY- Fiscal Year

GIS- Geographic Information Systems
GPS- Global Positioning Systems

HBP- Highway Bridge Program

HCM- Highway Capacity Manual

HTF- Highway Trust Fund

HOV- High Occupancy Vehicle

HPMS- Highway Performance Monitoring Systems
HRB- Highway Research Board

HSIP- Highway Safety Improvement Program
HSR- High Speed Rail

I/M- Inspection and Maintenance

IAMP- Interchange Area Management Plan

ICC- Interstate Commerce Commission

IHS- Interstate Highway System

IM- Interstate Maintenance

IRF- International Road Federation

ISTEA- Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991
ITS- Intelligent Transportation Systems

IVHS- Intelligent Vehicle Highway Systems

LCDC- Land Conservation and Development Commission
LOS- Level of Service (Traffic flow rating)

LRT- Light Rail Transit

LRTP- Long-Range Transportation Plan

MAP-21- Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21t Century

MIS — Major Investment Study

MOA- Memorandum of Agreement

MOU- Memorandum of Understanding

MOVES- Motor Vehicle Emission Simulator

MPO- Metropolitan Planning Organization

MSA- Metropolitan Statistical Area

MTP- Metropolitan Transportation Plan, also called RTP or Regional Transportation Plan
MTIP- Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program; also called TIP or Transportation
Improvement Program

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
38



Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms

MUTCD- Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
MWACT- Mid-Willamette Valley ACT

NAA- Non-Attainment Area

NAAQS- National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NEPA- National Environmental Policy Act of 1969
NHS- National Highway System

NHTSA- National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
NOX- Nitrogen Oxides

O&M- Operations and Maintenance

ODOT- Oregon Department of Transportation

OHP- Oregon Highway Plan

OM&P- Operations, Maintenance and Preservation

OMPOC- Oregon MPO Consortium

ORFS- Oregon Roads Finance Committee

OTC- Oregon Transportation Commission

OTIA- Oregon Transportation Investment Act

OTP- Oregon Transportation Plan

OTREC- Oregon Transportation Research and Education Consortium

PCI- Pavement Condition Index

PCR- Pavement Condition Rating

PE- Preliminary Engineering

PEA- Planning Emphasis Area (as established by FHWA)
PL- Planning Funds

POP- Program of Projects

PPM- Policy and Procedure Memorandum

PPP- Public Participation Plan

PS&E —Plans, Specifications, and Estimates

RFP- Request for Proposal

ROW- Right of Way

RR- Railroad

RTP- Regional Transportation Plan; sometime called an MTP or Metropolitan Transportation
Plan.

RTPO- Rural Transportation Planning Organization

SAFETEA-LU- Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act —a Legacy for
Users

SDC- System Development Charge

SIB- State Infrastructure Bank

SIP- State Implementation Plan

SOV- Single Occupancy Vehicle

SPR- State Planning and Research funds

SRTS- Safe Routes to School

STA- Special Transportation Area

STF- Special Transportation Fund

STIP- State Transportation Improvement Program

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
39



Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms

C-STIP- Construction STIP

D-STIP- Development STIP
STP- Surface Transportation Program
STP-E- Surface Transportation Program —Enhancement
STP-R- Surface Transportation Program —Rural
STP-S- Surface Transportation Program —State
STP-U- Surface Transportation Program —Urban
STPP- Surface Transportation Policy Project

TAC- Technical Advisory Committee

TAZ- Traffic Analysis Zone

TCM- Transportation Control Measure

TDM- Transportation Demand Management

TDP- Transit Development Program

TEA-21- Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century

TIFIA- Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 1998
TIP- Transportation Improvement Program, also either MTIP or STIP
TMA- Transportation Management Area

TO- Transportation Options

TOD- Transit Oriented Development

TPAU- Transportation Planning Analysis Unit (ODOT)

TPR- Transportation Planning Rule

TRB- Transportation Research Board

TSI- Transportation System Improvements

TSM- Transportation System Management

TSP- Transportation System Plan

TUF- Transportation Utility Fee

UGB- Urban Growth Boundary

UPWP- Unified Planning Work Program
U.S.C.— United States Code

UZA- Urbanized Area

VIC- Volume to Capacity

VMT- Vehicle Miles Traveled
VOCs- Volatile Organic Compounds
VPD - Vehicles Per Day

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025

40



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Appendix B: Transportation Glossary
5303 - FTA Section 5303 transit planning funds for metropolitan areas
5307 - Section 5307 formula grants for Urbanized Areas (MPOs)

5310 - FTA Section 5310 formula grants to enhance mobility of seniors and those with
disabilities

5311 - FTA Section 5311 formula grants for non-urbanized areas

5339 - FTA Section 5339 federal capital investment grants for buses and bus facilities
(previously 5309)

Alternative Modes of Transportation - Forms of transportation that provide transportation
alternatives to the use of single-occupant automobiles. Examples include: rail, transit, carpools,
bicycles, and walking.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) - Federal civil rights legislation for persons with
disabilities, signed into law in 1990, that prohibits discrimination specifically in the areas of
employment, public accommodation, public services, telecommunications, and transportation.
Transportation requirements include the provision of “comparable paratransit service” that is
equivalent to general public fixed-route service for persons who are unable to use regular bus
service due to a disability.

Arterial Street - A class of street serving major traffic movements (high-speed, high volume) for
travel between major points.

Balanced Transportation System - A system that provides a range of transportation options
and takes advantage of the inherent efficiencies of each mode.

Board of County Commissioners (BCC) — Elected officials (three per county) who serve as
the administrative and policy decision makers for Benton County.

Capacity - A transportation facility's ability to accommodate a moving stream of people or
vehicles in a given time period. The maximum rate of flow at which persons or vehicles can be
reasonably expected to traverse a point or uniform segment of a lane or roadway during a
specified time period under prevailing roadway, traffic, and control conditions; usually expressed
as vehicles per hour or persons per hour.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - A plan for future capital infrastructure and program
expenditures which identifies each capital project, its anticipated start and completion, and
allocates existing funds and known revenue sources for a given period of time. Each local
government has a CIP.

Comprehensive Plan - An official document adopted by a local government that describes the
general, long-range policies on how the community's future development should occur. A local
comprehensive plan must be in compliance with Oregon state land use planning goals.

Congestion - A condition under which the number of vehicles using a facility is great enough to
cause reduced speeds and increased travel times.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
41



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Congestion Management System (CMS) - Systematic process for managing congestion.
Provides information on transportation system performance and finds alternative ways to
alleviate congestion and enhance the mobility of people and goods, to levels that meet state
and local needs.

Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) —The state department that
administers Oregon’s state-wide land use program. The Land Conservation and Development
Commission (LCDC) is the appointed policy board that guides DLCD.

Department of Transportation (DOT) - When used alone, indicates U.S. Department of
Transportation. In conjunction with a place name, indicates state, city, or county transportation
agency (e.g., Oregon Department of Transportation is ODOT).

Environmental Justice (EJ) - Environmental justice assures that services and benefits allow
for meaningful participation and are fairly distributed to avoid discrimination.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) - A branch of the US Department of Transportation
that administers the federal-aid Highway Program, providing financial assistance to states to
construct and improve highways, urban and rural roads, and bridges. The FHWA also
administers the Federal Lands Highway Program, including survey, design, and construction of
forest highway system roads, parkways and park roads, Indian reservation roads, defense
access roads, and other Federal lands roads.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) - A branch of the US Department of Transportation that
is the principal source of federal financial assistance to America's communities for planning,
development, and improvement of public or mass transportation systems. FTA provides
leadership, technical assistance, and financial resources for safe, technologically advanced
public transportation to enhance mobility and accessibility, to improve the Nation's communities
and natural environment, and to strengthen the national economy.

Financial Planning - The process of defining and evaluating funding sources, sharing the
information, and deciding how to allocate the funds.

Financial Programming - A short-term commitment of funds to specific projects identified in
the Transportation Improvement Program (see TIP).

Fiscal or Financial Constraint - Making sure that a given program or project can reasonably
expect to receive funding within the time allotted for its implementation.

Formula Capital Grants — Federal transit funds for transit operators; allocation of funds
overseen by FTA.

Geographic Information System (GIS) - Computerized data management system designed to
capture, store, retrieve, analyze, and display geographically referenced information.

Goal 12 - One of 19 statewide planning standards of Oregon that make up the state land use
planning program. Goal 12 relates to transportation and reads: "To provide and encourage a
safe, convenient and economic transportation system." See Transportation Planning Rule.

Goals - A desired result or purpose. In planning, a goal is a broad statement of philosophy that
describes the hopes of the people of the community for the future of the community. A goal may
never be completely attainable, but it is used as a point toward which the community may strive.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
42



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

High-Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) - Vehicles carrying two or more people. The number that
constitutes an HOV for the purposes of HOV highway lanes may be designated differently by
different transportation agencies.

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) - The application of advanced technologies to
improve the efficiency and safety of transportation systems.

Interim Benchmarks - Transportation System Plans (TSP) required by the Transportation
Planning Rule must include interim benchmarks for use in evaluating progress at 5-year
intervals. Where interim benchmarks are not met, the TSP must be amended to include new or
additional efforts.

Intermodal - The ability to connect, and the connections between, modes of transportation.

Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA) - Legislative initiative by
the US Congress that restructured funding for transportation programs; authorized an increased
role for regional planning commissions/MPOs in funding decisions; and required comprehensive
regional and statewide long-term transportation plans.

Interstate Highway System (IHS) - The system of highways that connects the principal
metropolitan areas, cities, and industrial centers of the United States. Also connects the US to
internationally significant routes in Canada and Mexico.

Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) - A seven-member commission
of volunteer citizens established by Senate Bill 100 in 1973 to develop and administer Oregon's
statewide planning goals. The commission sets and guides policy for the administrative
department, DLCD.

Land Use - Refers to the manner in which portions of land or the structures on them are used,
i.e. commercial, residential, retail, industrial, etc.

Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) - A board established by the state legislature in 1979 to
hear and decide on contested land-use cases

Level of Service (LOS) - A qualitative rating of how well a unit of transportation supply (e.g.
street, intersection, bikeway, etc) serves its current or projected demand. LOS A = free flow
condition (32 percent of capacity); B= reasonably free flow conditions (51 percent); C=operation
stable but becoming more critical (75 percent); D=lower speed range of stable flow (92 percent);
E=unstable flow (100 percent); F=forced flow; >100 percent of capacity, stop and go operation.

Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons - Persons for whom English is not their primary
language and who have a limited ability to speak, understand, read, or write English. It includes
people who reported to the U.S. Census that they do not speak English well or do not speak
English at all.

Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) - See Regional Transportation Plan

Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) - Moving Ahead for Progress in the
21+ Century Act is a multi-year federal transportation legislation, signed into law in 2012, that
authorizes federal funds for surface transportation programs.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
43



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) - A federally designated regional policy body,
required in urbanized areas with populations over 50,000, and designated by local officials and
the governor of the state. Responsible in cooperation with the state and other transportation
providers for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning requirements of federal
highway and transit legislation.

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) -See Transportation
Improvement Program.

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) — See Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)

Mitigation - means to avoid, minimize, rectify, or reduce an impact, and in some cases, to
compensate for an impact.

Mode - A specific form of transportation, such as automobile, subway, bus, rail, or air.
Multimodal - A trip involving several types of transportation, such as both rail and bus.

Objective - An attainable target that the community attempts to reach during the process of
striving to meet a goal. An objective may also be considered as an intermediate point that will
help fulfill the overall goal.

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG) — A voluntary association of
local governments in Linn, Benton and Lincoln Counties, Oregon. Dedicated to solving area-
wide problems, OCWCOG helps area cities, counties, ports, and member tribes reach their
common goals.

Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) - The State agency that manages the highway
system within Oregon. ODOT’s mission is to provide a safe, efficient transportation system that
supports economic opportunity and livable communities for Oregonians. ODOT is the
administrative agency that responds to policy set by the Oregon Transportation Commission
(OTC).

Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC) - Establishes state transportation policy and
guides the planning, development and management of a statewide integrated transportation
network. The governor appoints five commissioners, ensuring that different geographic regions
of the state are represented. One member must live east of the Cascade Range; no more than
three can belong to one political party.

Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP) - The comprehensive, long-range plan for a multimodal
transportation system for the state which encompasses economic efficiency, orderly economic
development, safety and environmental quality.

Paratransit - Alternative known as "special or specialized" transportation which often includes
flexibly scheduled and routed transportation services. These services use low-capacity vehicles
such as vans to operate within normal urban transit corridors or rural areas. Services usually
cater to the needs of persons whom standard mass transit services would serve with difficulty,
or not at all. Common patrons are the elderly and persons with disabilities.

Performance Measures - Indicators of how well the transportation system is performing with
regard to such things as average speed, reliability of travel, and accident rates. Used as
feedback in the decision-making process.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
44



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Planning Funds (PL) - Primary source of funding for metropolitan planning designated by the
FHWA.

Policy - A statement adopted as part of a plan to provide a specific course of action moving the
community towards attainment of its goals. Due to budget constraints and other activities, all
policies cannot be implemented at the same time. Generally, those with metropolitan-wide
implications should receive priority consideration.

Policy Board - An intergovernmental policy group that comprises representatives from MPO
member jurisdictions. The Policy Board provides policy guidance on the transportation planning
process in the MPO area.

Project Development - The phase a proposed project undergoes once it has been through the
planning process. The project development phase includes a more detailed analysis of a
proposed project's social, economic, and environmental impacts and various project
alternatives. What comes from the project development phase is a decision reached through
negotiation among all affected parties, including the public. After a proposal has successfully
passed the project development phase, it may move to preliminary engineering, design, and
construction.

Program of Projects (POP) - Each recipient of a Section 5307 grant shall develop, publish,
afford an opportunity for a public hearing on, and submit for approval a POP. Often times the
MPO Transportation Improvement Program serves as the TIP.

Public Facility Plan - A plan required by state law for any city with an urban growth boundary
encompassing a population greater than 2,500. A plan outlining the sewer, water and
transportation facilities needed to serve such an urbanized area.

Public Hearing - A formal event held prior to a decision that gathers community comments and
positions from all interested parties for public record and input into decisions.

Public Involvement Plan (PIP) - A plan that describes the public involvement goals and
objectives, and methods of involving the public in transportation decisions.

Public Meeting - A formal or informal event designed for a specific issue or community group
where information is presented and input from community residents is received

Public Participation - The active and meaningful involvement of the public in the development
of transportation plans and programs.

Recipient - Any State, political subdivision, instrumentality, or any public or private agency,
institution, department or other organizational unit receiving financial assistance from the
Federal government.

Refinement Plan - Refinement plans are a detailed examination of the service needs and land
use issues relevant to a particular area.

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) - A document resulting from regional collaboration and
consensus on a region's transportation system and serving as the defining vision for the region's
transportation systems and services. In metropolitan areas, the plan indicates all of the
transportation improvements scheduled for funding over a minimum of the next 20 years.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
45



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Right-of-Way (ROW) - Public space legally established for the use of pedestrians, vehicles or
utilities. Right-of-way typically includes the street, sidewalk and buffer strip areas.

Stakeholders- Individuals and organizations involved in or affected by the transportation
planning process. Include federal/state/local officials, MPOs, transit operators, freight
companies, shippers, and the general public.

State Infrastructure Bank (SIB) - A revolving fund mechanism for financing a wide variety of
highway and transit projects through loans and credit enhancement. SIBs are designed to
complement traditional Federal-aid highway and transit grants by providing States increased
flexibility for financing infrastructure investments.

State Implementation Plan (SIP) - A plan mandated by the CAA that contains procedures to
monitor, control, maintain, and enforce compliance with the NAAQS.

State Planning and Research Funds (SP&R, SPR) - Primary source of funding for statewide
long-range planning.

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) - Prepared by ODOT, the STIP is a
staged, multiyear listing of projects proposed for federal, state, and local funding encompassing
the entire state. It is a compilation of the MTIPs prepared for the metropolitan areas, as well as
project information for the non-metropolitan areas of the state and for transportation between
cities. An MTIP must be incorporated into the STIP before MTIP projects can be funded by the
State or the Federal Government.

Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) — A State of Oregon program
established by Section 122 of HB 2017 Transportation Funding Package which provides a
dedicated source of funding for improving or expanding public transportation service.

Subrecipient - Any entity that receives Federal financial assistance as a pass-through from
another entity.

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) - The STBG Program is a multi-modal program
which provides funds for a broad range of transportation uses and may be used for projects on
any Federal-aid highway that is not functionally classified as a local or rural minor collector.
STBG funding has the most flexible eligibilities among all Federal-aid highway programs, funds
can be used for highway, transit, bicycle, pedestrian and other transportation options projects.

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) - A committee of technical staff from the public works
and planning departments of the MPO member jurisdictions. Ex-officio members of the TAC
may include FHWA, FTA, Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD),
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), and Oregon Division of State Lands
(DSL). Provides technical expertise and recommendations to the Policy Board.

Title VI - Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or
national origin (including limited English proficiency) in any program receiving federal
assistance.

Transportation Conformity - Process to assess the compliance of any transportation plan,
program, or project with air quality implementation plans. The conformity process is defined by
the Clean Air Act.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
46



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Transportation Corridor - Major or high-volume routes for moving people, goods and services
from one point to another. They may serve many transportation modes or be for a single mode
such as an air corridor.

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) - “Demand-based" techniques which are
designed to change travel behavior in order to improve the performance of transportation
facilities and to reduce the need for additional road capacity. Methods include the use of
alternative modes, ridesharing and vanpool programs and trip-reduction programs and/or
ordinances.

Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21) - Authorized in 1998, TEA-21
authorized federal funding for transportation investment for fiscal 1998-2003. Approximately
$217 billion in funding was authorized, the largest amount in history, which is used for highway,
transit, and other surface transportation programs.

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) - A staged, multi-year (typically three to five
years) listing of surface transportation projects proposed for federal, state and local funding
within a metropolitan area. MPOs are required to prepare a TIP as a short-range programming
document to complement its long-range Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). TIPs contain
projects with committed or reasonably certain funds.

Transportation Infrastructure - A federal credit program under which the USDOT may provide
three forms of credit assistance -secured (direct) loans, loan guarantees, and standby lines of
credit -for surface transportation projects of national or regional significance. The fundamental
goal is to leverage federal funds by attracting substantial private and non-federal co-investment
in critical improvements to the nation's surface transportation system.

Transportation Management Area (TMA) — All urbanized areas over 200,000 in population,
and any other area that requests such designation. The MPO is responsible for transportation
planning within a TMA.

Transportation Needs - These are estimates of the movement of people and goods that are
consistent with an acknowledged comprehensive plan and the requirements of the
Transportation Planning Rule. Needs are typically based on projections of future travel demands
resulting from a continuation of current trends as modified by policy objectives, including those
expressed in Statewide Planning Goal 12 and the Transportation Rule, especially those for
avoiding principal reliance on any one mode of transportation.

Transportation Planning - A collaborative process of examining demographic characteristics
and travel patterns for a given area. This process shows how these characteristics will change
over a given period of time and evaluates alternatives for the transportation system of the area
and the most expeditious use of local, state, and federal transportation funding. Long-range
planning is typically done over a period of 20 years; short-range programming of specific
projects usually covers a period of 4 to 5 years.

Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) - A state planning administrative rule, adopted by the
Land Conservation and Development Commission in 1991 to implement state land use planning
Goal 12, Transportation. The TPR requires metropolitan areas to show measurable progress
towards reducing dependence on automobiles.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
47



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Transportation System Management (TSM) -The techniques for increasing the efficiency,
safety, capacity or level of service of the existing transportation system without increasing its
size. Examples include traffic signal improvements, traffic control devices including installing
medians and parking removal, channelization, access management, ramp metering, and
restriping for high occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes.

Transportation Systems Plan - A plan for one or more transportation facilities that are
planned, developed, operated and maintained in a coordinated manner to supply continuity of
movement between modes, and within and between geographic and jurisdictional areas.
Usually, a plan is produced by a local government, e.g. City of Philomath, Benton County, etc.

Travel Mode - The means of transportation used, such as automobile, bus, bicycle, or by foot.

Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) - The management plan for the (metropolitan)
planning program. Its purpose is to coordinate the planning activities of all participants in the
planning process.

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) - A site-specific line in the Metro Plan that separates existing
and future urban development from rural lands. Urban levels and densities of development,
complete with urban levels of services, are planned within the UGB. A requirement of the state
land use planning program.

Urbanized Area - Area that contains a city of 50,000 or more population plus incorporated
surrounding areas meeting size or density criteria as defined by the US Census.

Vehicle Miles of Travel (VMT) - The sum of distances traveled by all motor vehicles in a
specified region. A requirement of the state Transportation Planning Rule is reducing vehicle
miles traveled per capita.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
48



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and
Programs

The purpose of this appendix is to provide details on public involvement procedures related to
specific MPO plans and programs. These include long-range planning efforts including the
development and periodic update of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP), and the undertaking of special studies. These are performed every
two to five years. For these functions, both MPOs will develop a specific public involvement
program prior to the commencement of that activity. The specially tailored programs will include
elements discussed in Chapter 3 as well as specific targeted outreach activities. The sections
below provide details on specific involvement procedures organized by activity.

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
Each MPO is required by Federal law to prepare a long-range (at least 20-year) Regional
Transportation Plan (RTP) at least every five years. The plan, at a minimum, must address:
e Transportation facilities, including major roadways, transit, multimodal and
intermodal facilities, and intermodal connectors
¢ Environmental mitigation activities
¢ Afinancial plan
e Operational and management strategies
e Capital investment and other strategies
e Transportation and transit enhancement activities

As the RTP is being prepared, each MPO will make use of the public involvement tools
listed in Chapter 3 and Chapter 5 of this document. Each activity and its results will be
summarized and incorporated into the RTP as appropriate (either within the body of the RTP
or as an appendix). Public participation is encouraged throughout the update process at
Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee meetings, through direct comments to the
MPO, and at outreach events.

A new RTP is completed at least every five years. Amendments to the RTP may occur when
significant changes have been made in Federal transportation law. “Significant” changes
include:

e Changing the scope of the planning process (i.e. adding a new planning factor)

¢ Adding new requirements for the development of the plan

e Adding new requirements for consultation

The public outreach process for a new or amended RTP will include:

e Publishing the draft plan along with a public notice on the MPO to begin a 45-day
public comment period on the plan document

e Distributing public notice via e-mail to all MPO interested parties lists

¢ Inviting the public and notifying the media to provide public comment at the MPO
Policy Board meeting scheduled to adopt the new or amended RTP

¢ MPO staff attending and providing updates to partner agencies and stakeholders
during their regularly scheduled meetings

¢ Providing an additional opportunity for public comment if the final RTP differs
significantly from the version that was initially made available for comment

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
49



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

¢ Providing the Policy Board a summary of comments received prior to any formal
decision

¢ Comments made at the meeting are recorded in the minutes and comments received
by the MPO are read into the minutes

¢ Demonstration of explicit consideration and response to public input received during
the development of the RTP

e Host a virtual open house to gather stakeholder input as appropriate

e Providing bi-lingual outreach materials to Limited English Proficiency (LEP)
populations including summary materials related to the draft RTP

A summary of the public process will be included in the RTP. This may include a summary
of public comments. The RTP and related documents will be made available in digital format
on the MPO website and in hardcopy at the MPO office. Hard copies will be distributed to
MPO member communities, agencies, and other stakeholders by request on a case-by-case
basis. Reasonable requests for alternate formats will be considered and accommodated
when possible.

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
Federal legislation requires that each MPO develop a Transportation Improvement Program
(TIP) at least every four years. The TIP must be developed in cooperation with member
jurisdictions, the State of Oregon, regional transit operators and shall be approved by the
MPO Policy Board and the Governor. Copies of the TIP are provided to the Federal
Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and made
available to the general public on each MPO website.

The TIP must be consistent with the RTP and include:

o Alist of proposed federally or state funded and regionally significant projects to be
carried out within the time period after the initial adoption of the TIP

e A prioritization process for allocating funds

¢ Project descriptions in sufficient detail to identify each project or phase of the project

¢ A financial plan that demonstrates how the TIP can be implemented and indicates
resources from public and private sources that are reasonably expected to be
available to carry out the program

The TIP is occasionally updated, with amendments first submitted to MPO staff for review.
Staff will work with the project sponsor, ODOT, the United States Department of
Transportation (USDOT), the MPO Policy Board, and the MPO Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) to determine if the proposed amendment is classified as a full
amendment, administrative amendment or an adjustment. See the MPO TIP Amendment
Policy for additional information.

Public participation is encouraged throughout the TIP development and amendment
processes in the following ways:

e When a new TIP is being developed, or projects are being evaluated including
funding selection, special public notice will be provided through the MPO website,
emails to interested parties, notice in local media and other means as appropriate

e A current TIP will be posted on each MPO website

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
50



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

e The public is invited to attend all TAC and Policy Board meetings, at which the
development of amendments to the TIP will be discussed

¢ Each MPO will provide an additional opportunity for public comment if the final TIP
differs significantly from the version that was initially made available for comment

e Comments made at the meeting will be recorded in the minutes and comments
received will be included in the minutes

e Each MPO will demonstrate explicit consideration and response to public input
received during the development of the TIP and staff will provide the Policy Board
with a summary of comments received prior to any formal decision

e Special public involvement opportunities, which may include additional public
meetings or informational sessions

o MPO staff will attend partner agency and stakeholder meetings and provide updates
on the TIP process

e Each MPO will host a virtual open house to gather stakeholder input as appropriate.
Virtual engagement will solicit input through online comment maps, comment forms
and surveys.

e MPO staff will provide bi-lingual outreach materials, including project information,
available to regionally identified Limited English Proficiency (LEP) populations

Copies of public notices and a summary of comments received will be made available and
may be incorporated into an appendix in the final TIP document. The TIP will be made
available in digital format on the MPO website and in hard copy at the MPO office. Hard
copies of the TIP will be distributed to MPO member jurisdictions, agencies, and other
stakeholders by request on a case-by-case basis. Reasonable requests for alternate
formats will be considered and accommodated when possible.

Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan/ Limited English Proficiency Plan
Each MPO will maintain a Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan, in compliance with Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and related federal
regulations. The plan will include a Limited English Proficiency Plan. The Title VI /
Nondiscrimination Plan will reflect the MPO’s commitment to ensuring that no person shall -
on the ground of race, color, national origin, religion, age, marital status, sexual orientation,
or disability -be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity conducted by the MPO. Each MPO Title VI
Program is inherently related to public participation and will be considered part of this PPP
by this reference.

The Title VI Program will be reviewed and updated at least every three years and amended
as necessary. An amendment to the Title VI Program may occur if a federal regulation
regarding non-discrimination or limited English proficiency has been created or modified. In
all cases, the public will be invited to provide comment. Public participation is encouraged
throughout the update process at the MPO Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee
meetings, through comments received at the MPO office, and at outreach events.

Public participation is encouraged during the development or amendment process of the
Title VI / Nondiscrimination Plan in the following ways:

e Publishing the Title VI Program and a public notice on the MPO website

¢ Distributing public notices via e-mail to MPO Stakeholders and Interested Parties

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
51



Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs

¢ Inviting the public to MPO Policy Board and TAC meetings where the Title VI
Program is scheduled for review and/or adoption

e All comments will be documented in an appendix to the Title VI / Nondiscrimination
Plan

o Staff will provide the Policy Board a summary of comments received prior to any
formal decision

e OQutreach to Interested Parties will be conducted in person or via telephone as
requested

The Title VI Program and related documents will be made available in digital format at the MPO
website and in hard copy at the MPO office. Hard copies of the Title VI Program will be
distributed to MPO member jurisdictions, agencies, and other stakeholders by request on a
case-by-case basis. Reasonable requests for alternate formats will be considered and
accommodated when possible.

Public Participation Plan

During the development of the first PPP, a 45-day public comment period will be provided and
Interested Parties will be contacted for input. The public participation process outlined in the
PPP will be evaluated and amended periodically. An amendment to the PPP may also occur if a
federal or state regulation regarding public participation or environmental justice has been
created or modified. In all cases, the public will be invited to provide comment. Public
participation is encouraged throughout the update process at MPO Policy Board and Technical
Advisory Committee meetings.

Because the PPP will ultimately drive all future public involvement activities of the MPO, it is
important to conduct concerted outreach in the development of this plan. Outreach activities
completed during the development of the PPP document include:

= 45-Day public comment period, with public notice on website, in local newspaper and in
paid advertisements for

» Provision of draft plan to member jurisdictions with request to make copies available to
the public at their offices. Printed copies provided at member jurisdiction libraries for
review during public comment period.

= Electronic and printed copies of the draft Public Participation Plan were made available
for public review and comment. An electronic copy of the draft document was posted at
the MPO'’s website. Printed copies of the draft plan were available to be mailed with a
pre-addressed return envelope.

= Direct outreach to organizations representing stakeholder populations, including:
minority groups, seniors, persons with disabilities, bike and pedestrian advocates, and
transit users. Local economic development entities and neighborhood associations were
also contacted.

» Presentation of draft plan for review and comment by the MPO member jurisdictions as
represented on MPO Policy Board and MPO Technical Advisory Committee. These
meetings were open to the public and advertised on the MPO website and listed on
published agenda. All MPO meetings are accessible to those with disabilities.

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
52



Appendix D: Spectrum of Public Participation

Appendix D: Spectrum of Public Participation

The International Association for Public Participation (IAP2) developed the Spectrum of Public
Participation (Figure 3) to help clarify the role the public plays in the decision-making process.
The Spectrum of Public Participation outlines five levels of public participation which can be
utilized based on project goals and intended outcomes. Each MPO utilizes this resource as
guidance for public involvement efforts related to regional transportation planning.

Figure 2: Spectrum of Public Participation

IAP2’S PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SPECTRUM iaﬁ,-—,zﬂm

The IAP2 Federation has developed the Spectrum tc help groups define the public’s role in any public participation process.
The IAP2 Spectrum is quickly becoming an interational standard.

INCREASING IMPACT ON THE DECISION

INFORM CONSULT

To provide the public
with balanced and
objective information
to assist them in
understanding the
problem, altemnatives,
opportunities and/or
solutions.

-
-
o
(-]
=
8
™=
g
&
™=
g
o
o
=
(]
2
o

We will keep you ‘We will keep you
informed. : ]

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

© |AP2 International Federation 2014, Al rights reserved

AAMPO-CAMPO Joint Public Participation Plan, Adopted 2025
53



Attachment F

State Fiscal Year 2026 Unified Planning
Work Program (UPWP)

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026

ALBANY AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING
ORGANIZATION (AAMPO)

Adopted April XX, 2025

54



The development of this document and the implementation of tasks outlined in this document are made
possible through the US Department of Transportation (US DOT) funds, under the Federal Highway
Administration’s Public Law (PL) and Federal Transit Administration’s Section 5303. The required
matching dollars for PL fund is provided by the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and the
matching fund for the transit fund is provided in the form of In-Kind Match by the City of Albany Transit
System (ATS) and Benton County’s Special Transportation Fund (STF).

99



RESOLUTION No. 25-01

FOR THE PURPOSE OF APPROVING THE SFY 2026 ALBANY AREA METROPOLITAN
PLANNING ORGANIZATION'S
UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP)

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Oregon, pursuant to USC 23 §123 & 450, has
designated representatives of the cities of Jefferson, Millersburg, Albany, and Tangent, Benton
and Linn counties, and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) as the Albany Area
Metropolitan Planning Organization to carry out the requirements of the Metropolitan
Transportation Planning Process; and

WHEREAS, among the major requirements of the Metropolitan Transportation Planning
Process is the development of an annual Unified Planning Work Program that delineates the
MPQ's planning and programming activities and its associated working budget over a fiscal
year; and

WHEREAS, the Albany Metropolitan Planning Organization has developed a Unified Planning
Work Program for SFY 2026, in coordination with local governments, the US DOT and ODOT
and in compliance with all applicable federal and state requirements; and

WHEREAS, the City of Albany and Benton County have agreed to provide 'in-kind' local match
for the Federal Transit Administration's Section 5303 Funds that are applied by the MPO to

partially cover the cost of its transportation planning activities in SFY 2026;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Policy Board of the Albany Area MPO approves
the SFY 2026 Albany Area Unified Planning Work Program and its associated budget.

Dated on this April XX, 2025

APPROVED:

Commissioner Patrick Malone, Policy Board Chair
Albany Area MPO

ATTESTED:

Jaclyn Disney, CED Director
Albany Area MPO

56



ABOUT THE ALBANY AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Policy Board

Carolyn McLeod City of Albany

Patrick Malone Benton County

Walt Perry City of Jefferson

Roger Nyquist Linn County

Ray Hunt City of Millersburg

Greg Jones City of Tangent

Darrin Lane Citizens’ Representative

Christine Hildebrandt Oregon Department of Transportation

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

Chris Cerklewski City of Albany

Gary Stockhoff Benton County

Vacant City of Jefferson

Daineal Malone Linn County

Andrew Potts City of Millersburg

Joe Samaniego City of Tangent

James Feldmann Oregon Department of Transportation

TAC Ex-Officio Members

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Oregon Division

Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Region 10

Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) Oregon
Oregon Department of Transportation, Regional Transit Coordinator
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)

Oregon Division of State Lands (DSL)

AAMPO Staff

Billy McGregor Transportation Planner
Ashlyn Muzechenko Administrative Assistant
Address

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
1400 SE Queen Ave, Suite 205

Albany, OR 97322

Phone: (541)-924-4548

Fax: (541)-967-4651

www.Albanyareampo.org

Y


http://www.corvallisareampo.org/

This page intentionally left blank

58



Table of Contents

About The Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization ............cc.cceeeeuveeeeriiveeensinreeessineeesssnneeesnnns il
Section I: INTOQUCTION .....eiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt e et st e e st e e bt e st e e sabeeesmeeeeaneeas 1
Section II: WOrk Program OVETVIEW .........cccvviieriiiieeiriiieeeesiieeeesiieeeeserreeessssreeesesseeesssssseeessssseessnssseeens 2
Section TIL: PIanning TasKS........ccueeeiriiiieiiiiieeeeriiieeestiieeeestteeessereeeeeesreeesssssaeessssssaeessssseeesssssseessssseeens 6
Task 100 — Program ManagemeNt.............cccuueeerriuiieeeriurieeeerireeeesereeessssnreessssseeessssseessssssseeessssseeessnssees 6
Task 200 — Long Range Transportation PIanning..............ccccvveerriiiireeriiieeeeniieeessiieeeseneeeessnneeesenenens 9
Task 300 — Inter-Regional Transportation Planning..............cccceeeveviieinriiirieniiiie e evaee e 11
Task 400 — Transportation Programming ...........cccueeereuiieeriiiiireenirieeeerireeeeeerreeesssreeessssseeeesssseeessnes 13
Task 500 — SPECIAL PTOJECLS ...eeeuvviieeeiiiieeeeiiieeeeiite e sttt e e ettt e e e sitbeeeseebaeeesssnseeessssseeessssseeesssssseesanes 14
Section IV: BUdEt SUMIMATY .........eiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeeiieeeesiteeeeerteeeesereeesssbreesesssreeessssseaessssseeesssssesessnssees 15
SFY25 BUAZEt DY SUDLASK ......oviiiiiiiiiiieiiiicc ettt e et e e s st e e e s stra e e s snebeeeesnsraeeesssneeens 15
SFY25 Budget by FUNA SOUICE........cuiiiiiiiieeiiiieeeeiiiee e ettt e e esiie e e e streeessenreeessstraeessnereeessssnneeessssseeens 15
N S R T 2541151 1 1 USRS 16
Appendix A: AAMPO Planning Area and Inter-regional map ..........cccceeriueeirieernieeniieeiee e 16
Appendix B: Other Transportation Planning Activities in the MPO Area .........ccccceeviiiiniiiiiieenieee, 18
Appendix C: GloSSAry Of ACTONYIMS ....cccccuvvireeriiiireisiiereesirteeesstreeeeserteeesssreeessssseeeessssseeessssseeesssssseees 19
Appendix D: FHWA and FTA Joint Planning Emphasis ATeas ..........c.cceeeueeerieeiiiienieenieeeiee e 21
Appendix E: in-Kind MatCh OVEIVIEW.........ccieiiiiiiiiiiiiieeciieeeeireeeeerteeeestvaeeessreeesssssseeesssssaeesssseeeens 23
Appendix F: SUmMmary of COMMENLS..........vuiiiiriiireiriiieeeiiieeesrireeeeeereeeeesnreeessssreeessssseeessssseeesssssseeens 25
v

59



SECTION [: INTRODUCTION

What is a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)?

A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) is an organization of local governments designated per 23 USC and
23 CFR 450 to provide transportation planning and programming in areas with a collective population of 50,000
or over, termed as an Urbanized Area. As a condition for receiving federal transportation dollars, MPOs must
have a continuing, cooperative and comprehensive transportation planning process in cooperation with their
state Department of Transportation. The MPOs are responsible for development of a Regional Transportation
Plan (RTP), development of a Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP), and development of a
Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).

What is the Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization?
The Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) serves as the metropolitan planning organization

(MPO) for the Albany Urbanized Area, as designated by the Oregon Governor in February 6, 2013. This region
includes the cities of Jefferson, Millersburg, Albany, and Tangent, and parts of Benton, Linn, and Marion
counties.

AAMPO is governed by an eight member Policy Board consisting of representatives of the cities of Jefferson,
Millersburg, Albany, and Tangent, Benton and Linn counties, the Oregon Department of Transportation
(ODOT), and a Citizens’ Representative. AAMPQ’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) is made up of
professional staff of the above entities and an ODOT Transportation Planner. Unlike the Policy Board, the TAC
does not include a Citizens’ Representative. The representatives of relevant federal and other state agencies
have ex-officio status on TAC. The TAC reviews technical material and provides recommendations to the Policy
Board.

The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments, under a three-year contract with the Policy Board, provides
administrative services, fiscal services, and staffing to AAMPO.

The City of Albany is the owner of the Albany Transit System and their representation on the MPO Policy Board
and TAC also represents the interests of the transit system.

What is the Purpose of this Document?
In accordance with federal regulations (23 CFR 450.308), the functions and responsibilities of AAMPO include

development of a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), development of a Metropolitan Transportation
Improvement Program (MTIP) and development of a Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), as noted above. In
addition, the MPO produces an annual list of obligated projects and a Public Participation Plan (PPP). AAMPO
must also demonstrate compliance with Title VI and other non-discrimination requirements. The State Fiscal
Year 2025 UPWP demonstrates how AAMPO will fulfill these requirements between July 1, 2025 and June 30,
2026.

Any changes following the approval of this UPWP document will be approved via the Technical Advisory
Committee and Policy Board review and subsequent re-adoption.

1
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

60



SECTION II: WORK PROGRAM OVERVIEW

Funding Sources and Match Documentation

Funding from FHWA, FTA, and ODOT supports the AAMPO planning program. The Infrastructure Investment and
Jobs Act (IlJA Act) currently provides funding authorization for the nation’s surface transportation. A provision of
the Transportation Act, referred to as PL Funding, provides transportation planning dollars to support MPOs
across the country and acts as the majority of AAMPQ’s annual budget. Additional AAMPO support comes from
FTA 5303 planning funds.

FHWA apportions funds to ODOT and ODOT allocates funds to MPOs using a formula developed cooperatively
by ODOT and MPOs, and approved by FHWA. The budget assumptions in this document are according to the
most recent ODOT’s allocation of PL and 5303 Funds to each MPO. The expenditure assumptions of the budget
are based on the best estimates and the latest information available at the time of developing the document.

ODOT State Planning and Research (SPR) and Oregon Transportation Growth Management (TGM) funds often
provide support for other specific planning tasks not yet funded or in process at the time of UPWP development.
Additionally, AAMPO applies for other federal and state grant opportunities that are applicable and of interest
to the region.

Amendments

Amendments to the UPWP to add or remove funds from the UPWP budget, move funds from one task to
another, to add new tasks, or to alter portions of a task are allowed. MPO Staff process these amendments on
as-needed basis and decide the level of engagement needed by the Technical Advisory Committee and/or Policy
Board.

Larger amendments to the UPWP may necessitate Policy Board approval of an updated UPWP as well as
multiple MTIP and Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP) amendments. For example, a MTIP/STIP
amendment may be needed to update the amount of planning funds the MPO receives under the MPQ’s annual
work plan project, an additional amendment may then be needed to allocate those new funds to a specific
project included in the MTIP/STIP. Depending on the amount of funds and degree of change, proposed
amendments to the UPWP, STIP, and MTIP may require public comment periods as directed by the AAMPO
Policy Board. AAMPQ’s MTIP revision policy is posted on the AAMPO website, under the Transportation
Improvement Program tab: https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-plans-programs/.

Engagement and Process

It is a goal of AAMPO to gain the maximum possible public input into its transportation planning and
programming activities. To this end the agency has developed and formally adopted a Public Participation Plan
that outlines strategies and efforts that are conducted in association with the tasks in the Work Program. A copy
of the AAMPOQ’s Public Participation Plan is posted at the AAMPQO’s Website: https://www.ocwcog.org/wp-
content/uploads/2022/02/AAMPO-Public-Participation-Plan-Approved-1.26.2022.pdf Engagement levels vary
depending on the deliverable.

For the development of the UPWP, AAMPO engages stakeholders and the public by:
e Emailing stakeholders and interested parties regarding draft UPWP discussion and opportunity for
public comment via email or during regularly scheduled AAMPO meetings
2

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

61


https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-plans-programs/
https://www.ocwcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/AAMPO-Public-Participation-Plan-Approved-1.26.2022.pdf
https://www.ocwcog.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/AAMPO-Public-Participation-Plan-Approved-1.26.2022.pdf

e Holding a 14-day comment period, from April XX — April XX, 2025, prior to a decision by the Policy
Board to adopt the UPWP

e Providing public comment opportunities at all monthly Policy Board and TAC meetings

e Providing notifications regarding the UPWP public comment period on the AAMPO website, along
with agendas and minutes for all Policy Board and TAC meetings

Title VI Complaints Procedure

Any person who believes they—or with a specific class of persons—were subjected to discrimination on the
basis of race, color, or national origin in the programs and activities of a Federal-aid Recipient may file a Title VI
complaint.

FHWA Division Offices do not investigate Title VI complaints. Likewise, Recipients, such as State DOTs, and
Subrecipients do not investigate complaints filed against themselves. Finally, FHWA is responsible for all
decisions regarding whether a complaint should be accepted, dismissed, or referred to another agency.
With this understanding, complaints should be routed in the following ways:

e All complaints should be routed to the FHWA Headquarters Office of Civil Rights (HCR) for processing.
HCR is responsible for all determinations regarding whether to accept, dismiss, or transfer Title VI
complaints filed against State DOTSs or Subrecipients of Federal financial assistance.

e Complaints should be forwarded from the initial receiving agency through the Federal-aid highway
oversight hierarchy until the complaint reaches HCR. For example, if a complaint is filed with a
Subrecipient City, that receiving agency should forward the complaint to the State DOT, which should
forward the complaint to the State’s FHWA Division Office, which should forward the complaint to HCR.
If a complaint is filed with a State DOT, then the State DOT should forward the complaint to the State’s
FHWA Division Office, which should forward the complaint to HCR.

e State DOTs and Subrecipients must log all complaints received.

When HCR decides on whether to accept, dismiss, or transfer the complaint, HCR will notify the Complainant,
the FHWA Division Office, State DOT, and Subrecipient (where applicable).
Complaints may also be sent to HCR directly at:

Postal Mail Federal Highway Administration
U.S. Department of Transportation
Office of Civil Rights 1200 New
Jersey Avenue, SE 8th Floor E81-
105 Washington, DC 20590

Email CivilRights.FHWA@dot.gov

Fax 202-366-1599

Questions?  202-366-0693

3
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

62



Federal Performance Based Planning Requirements

As a federally designated metropolitan planning organization, AAMPO is required to develop and adopt
performance targets for Safety, Pavement Condition, Bridge Condition, National Highway System (NHS)
Performance, Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions, and Freight Movement/Reliability. Neither of the Congestion
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) measures apply as the Albany region is in attainment.

All Interstate sections and portions of the National Highway System (NHS) within the planning area are owned
and maintained by the Oregon Department of Transportation. This fact, coupled with the limited staff capacity
of a small MPO, led AAMPO to adopt the state targets for Safety, Pavement/Bridge Condition, NHS Performance
and Freight Reliability. While AAMPO does not have direct jurisdiction over any infrastructure, the Safety and
Transit performance measures apply to all public roads.

Safety

The AAMPO encourages the safe travel of all modes of transportation through emphasizing the preservation and
upgrading of existing infrastructure, prior to constructing any new infrastructure. This is reflected in their
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) project selection, which consists of predominantly
resurfacing projects. Resurfacing often presents opportunities to expand shoulders for bike lanes, improve
crosswalks, and reduce the maintenance need of transit vehicles. AAMPO supports the safety of the traveling
public through this approach. Furthermore, the City of Albany in combination with the Oregon Department of
Transportation are working to upgrade multiple signals, which will increase safety for all modes through modern
technology.

Transit

AAMPO staff wrote the Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) for Albany Transit System (ATS), as well as the
Linn Benton Loop, which is operated by ATS. In this sense, staff are intimately familiar with the transit
performance measures and have incorporated into our work plan the annual updating of the document.

Summary

The following table provides a summary of ODOT and AAMPOQ’s adopted performance measures. ODOT'’s
adopted FHWA performance management areas, measures, and targets for Oregon DOT can be found at:
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/PerformMang/Documents/FHWA%20Performance%20Management%20Area%

20Targets.pdf

Transportation Safety Supported ODOT’s Measures, January 2018 2026*
Bridge and Pavement Supported ODOT’s Measures, November 2018 2026*
Transportation System Supported ODOT’s Measures, November 2018 2026*
Transit Performance Measures PTASP Adopted August 2020, updated early Ann.ual

2022 Review

*Next update refers to mid performance period review and update of statewide measures.

Status of AAMPO and Regional Transportation Documents

AAMPO Regional Transportation Plan
(RTP)**

Adopted November 2023 May 2028*

4
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

63


https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/PerformMang/Documents/FHWA%20Performance%20Management%20Area%20Targets.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/PerformMang/Documents/FHWA%20Performance%20Management%20Area%20Targets.pdf

SFY 2024-2027 Metropolitan

Transportation Improvement Program | Adopted June 2023 June 2026
(MTIP)

SFY27 Unified Planning Work Program Adoption scheduled for April 2025 January 2026
Title VI Plan** Updated/Adopted in October 2024 October 2027
Public Participation Plan** Updated/Adopted in April 2025 April 2027

Benton County Transportation System Adopted March 2019 )

Plan

Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan Adopted April 22, 2023 -

I|;I|r;: County Transportation System Adopted in 2018 )

Albany Transportation System Plan Adopted February 2010 In Progress 2025
Albany Transit Development Plan Approved May 2018 -
Jefferson Transportation System Plan Approved in June 2022 -
Tangent Transportation System Plan Adopted in 2010 In progress 2025
Millersburg Transportation System Plan | Adopted December 2016 Planned 2024-27

*2027, AAMPO and Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPOQ) as of this document are planning to adopt a unified RTP.
**AAMPO and CAMPO are intending to adopt unified plans.

Annual and Semiannual Reporting

AAMPOQ’s SFY25 accomplishments as described in the Annual Report, occurring between July 1, 2024 and June
30, 2025, can be found on the AAMPO webpage at https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-
plans-programs/ under the Plans, Projects, Programs, and Pages subsection.

Annual reporting for the previous fiscal year is due to ODOT by July 31.
Semi-annual reporting for the period of July 1 to December 31 is due to ODOT in January.

5
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

64


https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-plans-programs/
https://www.ocwcog.org/transportation/aampo/aampo-plans-programs/

SECTION Ill: PLANNING TASKS

Task 100 — Program Management

The purpose of this task is to provide management and administrative support for the MPQO’s planning and
programming activities. Components of this task are:

110 - MPO Operation
The administration of the MPO operation and MPO office will include:

e Working with the MPO Policy Board and the Technical Advisory Committee to meet the
transportation planning and programming needs of the MPO Area.

e Holding regular meetings of the Policy Board and the Technical Advisory Committee.

e Coordinating the MPQ’s planning and programming activities with local planning officials,
economic development agencies, local environmental organizations, transit providers, ODOT,
FHWA, FTA and Tribal governments.

e Attending trainings, transportation-related conferences, and statewide and local transportation-
related meetings. At a minimum, staff expect to attend:

— The National Association of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) annual conference
or other applicable national conference.

— The Oregon Chapter of the American Planning Association conference .
— Technical trainings offered by OSU and other state entities as available.

— Other local or regional gatherings or trainings as available, including the Oregon Active
Transportation Summit, the Oregon Transportation Options Conference, etc.

— Attend City of Albany Transportation Advisory Commission meetings.
e Involving the public in transportation planning and programming activities; public education;
implementation of the AAMPQ's public participation process.

e Coordinating the MPQ’s transportation planning and programming with the Cascades West Area
Commission on Transportation (CWACT) and the associations of peer MPOs.

e Participating in the Oregon Modeling Statewide Collaborative (OMSC), helping to guide the Oregon
Modeling Improvement Program.

e Participating on the Oregon Metropolitan Planning Organization Consortium (OMPOC), a forum
for Oregon’s MPOs to address common needs, issues and solutions to transportation and land
use challenges facing Oregon’s metropolitan regions and surrounding area.

e Complying with all applicable federal requirements, particularly, Americans with Disabilities (ADA),
Title VI requirements and DOT Order 5610.2(a).

e Coordinating regional transportation projects within the Albany Area MPO.

Product: Regular meetings of the MPO Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee and an AAMPO
presence at regional and state meetings.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

6
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

65



120 — MPO Administration
Activities under this item will include:

e Complying with required paperwork and documentation of activities as well as the maintenance of
the MPO records.

e Accounting, bookkeeping, and invoicing.

® Preparing and submitting semi-annual and annual reports to ODOT. Semi-annual reports are
submitted by January 15", annual reports are submitted by July 30™

e Preparing the agency’s financial audit.

e Upkeep and maintenance of the agency’s website, including adding all MPO designation
documents. Consider updating website to more accessible version.

e Attending organizational and personnel-related meetings.

e Creation and maintenance of an MPO continuity of operations binder.

Product: Compliance with federal and state transportation planning regulations, semi-annual reports and
invoices, financial audit results, up to date website.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

130 - Annual Document Review
This task is intended to review, update and publish any changes to the major documents AAMPO is required to
maintain. An annual review at the least will be conducted, with updates completed as necessary. This includes:

e Posting of Obligated Transportation Projects on the website, per Federal Requirements.
e Reviewing the Title VI/Non-discrimination Plan in conjunction with Task 310.

e Reviewing the Public Participation Plan in conjunction with Task 310, and updating to include
enough specificity that members of the public can clearly know the duration of comment periods
for each MPO document or change, and how to best access the information.

e Developing the SFY27 Unified Planning Work Program and budget, and subsequent approval.

e Amending the current (FY26) Unified Planning Work Program as needed.

Product: An SFY27 UPWP that outlines the work program and budget for the coming year. Amendments to
required federal planning documents as needed.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

140 — MPO Education and Training

This task is intended to educate and inform newly appointed Policy Board members and members of the public
about the role MPOs have in coordinating regional transportation planning. Additional trainings on principles of
transportation planning will also be considered. Materials will include the following:

e Whatisan MPO.
e MPOQ's role in transportation planning.

e Transportation planning principles, including education on the Corvallis Albany Lebanon Model by
TPAU when requested.

7
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

66



e Walking, bicycling, and transit tours of the AAMPO planning area.
e Providing TAC and Policy Board monthly grant opportunity updates when applicable.

e Transportation oriented speaker series (may be done in conjunction with CAMPO and local

jurisdictions).

Product: Educate new MPO members and the public as requested.

Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

110: MPO Operation
120: MPO Administration
130: Annual Document Review

140: MPO Education and Training

8

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

67



Task 200 — Long Range Transportation Planning

The purpose of this task is to provide for the long range transportation planning needs within the Albany
Metropolitan Planning Area. While some tasks could be perceived as “short range,” they generally contribute to
the long term needs and knowledge of the region, and intentionally help to build technical capacity of member
jurisdictions (i.e. without the MPO they would not have the same opportunity). This task is funded through a
combination of PL and 5303 Funds.

Task 210: Technical Assistance to Communities

AAMPO is continually working to better serve the communities of Albany, Jefferson, Millersburg, and Tangent,
as well as Benton and Linn counties. Understanding that many cities are understaffed and/or overworked, the
MPO proposes 40 hours of staff time to each member community to work towards a long-range transportation
project. Whether that’s assistance on an existing project, completing a quick analysis that’s been on the to-do
list for months, or doing some conceptual design work for transportation improvements. Projects would have to
adhere to requirements in 23 CFR 450, which outline the tasks eligible for reimbursement with PL funding. This
includes but is not limited to:

e Grant readiness and fundraising support services including but not limited to grant prospecting,
review, and consulting.

e Transportation Scoping Studies.

e Bicycle/Pedestrian/Vehicle Count Analysis.

e Transportation System Plan Project Identification.
e Conceptual Desigh Recommendation.

Product: 240 hours of staff time to AAMPO members. A summary of tasks completed presented to the
Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Board.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

Task 220: AAMPO RTP Performance Monitoring

The purpose of this work item is to continue placing staff effort on RTP implementation including dissemination
of information about the plan and pursuit of project funding. Regular performance monitoring will also be
performed as part of this work task. One aspect of this task could include a “Transportation Project Tracker,”
which captures local and regional infrastructure improvements on a year by year basis, to share with the public
as well as the policy board.

Product: Development of high-level overview document summarizing the AAMPO RTP for elected officials and
general public, progress funding projects listed in RTP, amendments to RTP as needed, ongoing performance
monitoring and reporting.

Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

Task 230: Regional Count Project Scoping

Work with the Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPO) staff to create a program using shared methodology and equipment
to perform AAMPO region multi-modal (cyclist and pedestrian) counts as requested. Set aside funds for
equipment purchases if needed.

Product: A joint MPO process for deploying mobile counters and the ability to fulfill requests for collecting
count data by AAMPO members. Funds set aside for potential purchase of one additional mobile counter.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

9
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

68



Task 240: Safety and Active Transportation Planning Support
The jurisdictions within AAMPO continue to elevate safety and active transportation as a priority, as reflected
by a series of awarded funding for activities in the area, and a renewed interest in public outreach and
engagement on these topics. This includes muti-use path planning support, with proposals connecting
Corvallis and Albany, Albany and Millersburg, etc.

Task partners include the AAMPO members, ODOT, and the Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments’
Transportation Options program, among others.

Support activities include:

Participating in advisory group meetings on relevant topics.

Coordinating with local, state, federal and nonprofit organizations on active transportation and
safety topics.

Generating original research or policy to support projects.

Public outreach and engagement on specific projects, like a public open house, or general themes,
such as bicycle safety.

Participating in larger public events or campaigns, such as Corvallis Open Streets, in conjunction
with Task 310.

Product: Technical assistance on relevant topics, meeting participation, and public engagement activities.

Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year expected to extend into subsequent fiscal years.

210: Technical Assistance to Communities $25,000
220: AAMPO RTP Performance Monitoring $13,000
230: Regional Count Project Scoping $7,500
240: Safety and Active Transportation Planning $7,000
Support

Total $52,500

10

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

69



Task 300 — Inter-Regional Transportation Planning,

The purpose of this task is to focus on the inter-regional needs and opportunities of the Albany Area
Metropolitan Planning Area. This task recognizes the interrelated transportation needs of both AAMPO and the
Corvallis Area MPO and sets aside funds to work on projects affecting both MPOs as well as the greater region.
This task is funded through a combination of PL and 5303 Funds.

Task 310 - CAMPO Collaboration

As the greater Albany-Corvallis region grows in both population and employment, there will be increased stress

on the major commuter routes throughout the region. This task allocates money towards collaboration with the
Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPO) to address regional travel demand and alignment of programs. These specific tasks
include, but are not limited to:

e Hosting joint TAC and Policy Board meetings.

e Attend CAMPO TAC and Policy Board meetings.

e Aligning and updating key documents to reduce agency redundancy.

e Planning for regional freight connections and subsequent improvements.

e Exploring funding opportunities for local transportation project implementation.

e Continuing to study and work to modernize regionally significant corridors, such as highways 20
and 34.

CAMPO has identified similar funding to contribute in their upcoming UPWP. As projects are expected to
develop over the fiscal year, no definitive product other than meeting minutes currently exists. Any project
will be approved by both Policy Boards prior to beginning.

Product: Meeting minutes, regional maps, plans and lists of funding opportunities.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

Task 320 - Local Transit Planning Support

As increased funding for transit leads to expansion of Albany Transit System, AAMPO provides support for
ongoing planning activities, including service design and service analysis. With the design of the Transit
Operations Facility (TOF) which will support both Albany Transit and Linn Benton Loop, increased collaboration
is expected. With transitions to electric fleets, Albany Transit is also in need of an electric bus fleet transition
plan, which will be completed under this task. In SFY21, AAMPO prepared the Public Transit Agency Safety Plan
(PTASP) for Albany Transit System. As that document requires review once a year, that will be incorporated into
this task.

e Yearly document review of PTASP.
e Continued ZEV Support.
e Upkeep and changes to ATS Implementation Strategy with Nelson/Nygaard.

Products: Technical assistance as needed to Albany Transit System. Information dissemination from state and
federal partners. Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) annual update. Potential match for STIF regional
transit enhancement projects.

Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

11
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

70



Task 330: Linn-Benton Loop Support

The purpose of this task item is to capture AAMPO staffing support for the Linn-Benton Loop Governing Board
and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). Additional aspects include serving on the Loop TAC and as the liaison
between the AAMPO Policy Board and Linn-Benton transit service. AAMPO will continue to assist in the
implementation of the Linn-Benton Loop Service Development Plan.

Product: Staffing support and technical assistance to the Linn-Benton Loop; information dissemination from
state and federal partners.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

Task 340: Travel Model Coordination

This task is focused on the regional travel demand model and data collection, analysis and development. An up-
to-date travel demand model is useful for both MPO led and non-MPO led plans and projects (e.g. corridor
studies, capital projects, land use planning studies and land use developments). AAMPO staff will continue to
work with ODOT’s Transportation Planning and Analysis Unit (TPAU) to refine the Corvallis Albany Lebanon
Model (CALM), used by both AAMPO and CAMPO.

This task also includes work related to the Oregon Household Activity Survey (OHAS). The OHAS is a periodic
statewide effort, led by the Oregon Modeling Statewide Collaborative (OMSC), to capture demographic and
travel behavior of Oregon residents. This data is used to update travel demand models and answer other
transportation related questions. AAMPO is involved in the OHAS effort though the MPQO’s commitment to
provide funding (Task 420: OHAS Set Aside) as well as attendance at OMSC and OHAS meetings, proving input
and feedback on the OHAS effort.

Product: Up to date regional travel demand model, active participation in OHAS effort.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

310: CAMPO Collaboration $25,000
320: Local Transit Planning Support $25,000
330: Linn-Benton Loop Support $15,000
340: Travel Model Coordination $10,000

Total $75,000

12
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

71



Task 400 — Transportation Programming

The purpose of this task is to continually perform transportation programming for the Albany MPO Area through
the development of new Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Programs (MTIP) and the upkeep of the
existing MTIP for inclusion in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).

410 — MTIP Amendments
This task provides for the necessary amendments to the SFY24-27 MTIP and STIP documents. The

amendments are generally initiated either by member jurisdictions or by ODOT.

Product: Up-to-date SFY24-27 MTIP document.
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

410: MTIP Amendments $10,000
Total $10,000

13
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

72



Task 500 — Special Projects

This task focuses on special projects that are of interest to the MPO and broader transportation organizations.
Task 500 is created for the explicit purpose to capture one time projects that are not re-occurring to AAMPO

year to year.

Task 510: Special Project Pool
AAMPO created this special project pool task to enable the MPO to pursue projects of interest as such
opportunities arise. Project will require support of the AAMPO Technical Advisory Committee and Policy

Board.

Product: Product is dependent on the projects pursued and interests of the AAMPO TAC and Policy Board.
Schedule: Schedule is dependent on project pursued.

Task 520: Special Project Carryover
During FY 2025 Special Project Pool funds were identified for use. These funds were unable to be spent

down during that fiscal year and thus were deobligated and applied to this fiscal year, FY 2026.
Projects include a Salem Avenue — Old Salem Road Scoping Study, estimated $40,000

Product: As defined in the approved Scope of Work.
Schedule: By end of fiscal year.

510: Special Project Pool $239
520: Special Project Carryover* $90,000
Total $90,239

*Note. This move was approved at the Feb. 26, 2025 AAMPO
Policy Board meeting.

14
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

73



SECTION IV: BUDGET SUMMARY

The following budget tables detail the planned activities for State Fiscal Year 2024-2025. In addition, a

breakdown of expenses and funding sources is provided.

SFY26 Budget by Subtask

TASK 100: Program Management
110: MPO Operation
120: MPO Administration
130: Annual Document Review
140: MPO Education and Training
TASK 200: Long Range Transportation Planning
210: Technical Assistance to Communities
220: AAMPO RTP Performance Monitoring
230: Regional Count Project Scoping
240: Safety and Active Transportation Planning
Support
TASK 300: Inter-Regional Transportation Planning
310: CAMPO Collaboration
320: Local Transit Planning Support
330: Linn-Benton Loop Support
340: Travel Model Coordination
TASK 400: Transportation Programming
410: MTIP Amendments
TASK 500: Special Projects
510: Special Project Pool
520: Special Project Carryover
TOTAL

$115,000
$60,000
$40,000
$10,000
$5,000
$52,500
$25,000
$13,000
$7,500

$7,000

$75,000
$25,000
$25,000
$15,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$90,239
$239
$90,000
$342,739.16

$105,386

$67,160

$75,000

$20,080

$6,083

$273,709

$9,614

($14,660)

$0

($10,080)

$84,156

$69,031

8%

-28%

0%

-101%

93%

20%

Note: $252,739.16 is the SFY26 funding amount provided by ODOT on November 14, 2024.

SFY26 Budget by Fund Source

The Infrastructure and Investment Jobs Act (11JA) created a new requirement that 2.5% of planning funds must
be spent towards creating safe and accessible transportation options. This set aside must be clearly identified in
metropolitan work plans. These funds are labeled in the table below under Safe and Accessible Transportation
Options, or SATO. These funds do not require a local match.

15

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

74



Task 100: Program

Management $115,000 $103,190 SO $11,811 SO
Task 200: Long Range

Transportation Planning $45,000 $40,379 SO $4,622 SO
Task 230: Pop Up

Infrastructure 57,500 S0 57,500 SO SO
Task 300: Inter-Regional

Transportation Planning $75,000 $12,438 $54,860 $1,424 $6,279
Task 400:

Transportation

Programming $10,000 $8,973 SO $1,027 SO
Task 500: Special

Projects $90,239 $80,972 SO $9,268 SO
Total SFY26 Budget* $342,739.32 $245,950.10 $62,360.16 $28,150.09 $6,278.97

*Totals are provided by ODOT, AAMPOQ is unable to anticipate costs to the cent.

SFY26 Expenses

Advertising $1,000
Board/Comm/Meeting Expense $1,000
Contract Expense** (OCWCOG & External) $10,000
Copying $500
Dues and Memberships $1,000
Legal Expenses $1,000
Licenses and Fees $2,000
Maintenance and Repair $1,000
Overhead and Administration $32,612
Postage $500
Printing $500
Rent $6,451
Supplies $500
Telephone $1,000
Training $4,000
Travel $2,000
Special Project Pool $90,239

Total $342,739.32

26%
100%

*Totals are provided by ODOT, AAMPO is unable to anticipate costs to the cent.

16

**Contracted task support
includes part time work from the
COG Transportation Planner as
well as technical assistance from
external contractors. The special
projects pool can be payroll,
material or contract expense,
and will be approved by the
Policy Board prior to
expenditure.

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

75



APPENDIX A: AAMPO PLANNING AREA AND INTER-REGIONAL MAP

“ 4 ,,mtmp(/""’” Dever-Conner
abar e rganit” Rd
(s08) Jefferson
n Jefferson |
= Scio Rd.
3
. la64 &
Council of ) K
overnments
4 Millersburg
3 Conser Rd
&
ol kel
= o=
S
24
&)
i
Gibson Hill Rd
=) Y
]
R 7}
BENTON
LINN
20 PO9E
20
Queen Ave I
Albany
Riverside § &
34th;
E
o,
o
& o
R
S
o
<7
Ellingson Rd L
&
a
3
|
2|
§
@
Tangent Ga— | AAM Po
N Lake Ot E3 aavpo
City Limits ==
[ Albany
I sefferson
Tangent .L [ Millersburg
Dr. [ Tangent
°4 £ County Line
Signed Route
Select Roads
0 0.5 1 2 Miles ’x
T I T O B | N
12/31/2024 - Created by OCWCOG GIS

17
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

76



APPENDIX B: OTHER TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES IN THE MPO
AREA

The following is a list of concurrent transportation planning activities within the MPO Area:

1. Tangent TSP. Awarded via TGM in 2022, work began in calendar year 2025.

2. Millersburg TSP Update. Update funded via AAMPO Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG)
funds, now known as State Highway Funds (SHF). Funds awarded during the 2024-2027 cycle, no
date as of yet for work.

3. Albany TSP Update. Update funded via state CFEC rules, process is expected to begin in calendar
year 2025.

4. Corvallis to Albany Path Refinement. Planning and design scheduled for 2025 or 2026. No
construction funding identified currently.

18
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

77



APPENDIX C: GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS

ATS
AAMPO
CED
COoG
CPT-HSTP
CTS
CWACT
DEQ
DLCD
GHG
FAST
FHWA
FTA

FY

IGA

JA

ITS
MAP-21
MPO
MTIP
OCWCOG
oDOoT
Oosu
PEA

PL Fund

RTP

ROI

SATO
Section 5303
5307

Section 5310

Section 5311

STF
STIP
STBG(P)
TAC
TDP
TGM

TIP
TPAU
TSP
UPWP
usc

Albany Transit System

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization

Community and Economic Development Department of OCWCOG
Council of Governments

Coordinated Public Transit-Human Service Transportation Plan
Albany Transit System

Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation
Department of Environmental Quality

Department of Land Conservation and Development

Green House Gases

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation

Federal Highway Administration

Federal Transit Administration

Fiscal Year

Intergovernmental Agreement

Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act

Intelligent Transportation System

Moving Ahead for Progress in the 215 Century

Metropolitan Planning Organization

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program

Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments

Oregon Department of Transportation

Oregon State University

Planning Emphasis Areas

Planning Funds allocated to Metropolitan Transportation Planning
activities

Regional Transportation Plan

Return on Investment

Safe and Accessible Transportation Options

FTA’s program of financing transit planning activities of MPOs Section
FTA’s program of financing urban transit systems

FTA’s program of financing transit for the elderly and people with
disabilities

FTA’s program of financing rural transit services SHRP
Strategic Highway Research Program

Special Transportation Fund

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program

Surface Transportation Block Grant Program

Technical Advisory Committee

Transit Development Plan

Transportation Growth Management

Transportation Improvement Program
Transportation and Planning Analysis Unit of ODOT
Transportation System Plan

Unified Planning Work Program

United States Code

19

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

78



usDOT United States Department of Transportation

20
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

79



APPENDIX D: FHWA AND FTA JOINT PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS

FHWA and FTA issued new, joint Planning Emphasis Areas (PEAs) in December 2021. These updated Planning
Emphasis Areas are intended to be used by metropolitan planning organizations, state departments of
transportation, transit agencies, and federal land management agencies in their Unified Planning Work
Programs and State Planning and Research Work Programs. The link below provide additional information
about the new PEAs.

https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-programs/transportation-planning/2021-planning-emphasis-
areas

TASK 100: Program Management
110: MPO Operation X X
120: MPO Administration
130: Annual Document Review

140: MPO Education and Training X
TASK 200: Long Range Transportation
Planning

210: Technical Assistance to Communities X

220: AAMPO RTP Performance X

Monitoring

230: Regional Count Project Scoping X

240: Safety and Active Transportation

. X X
Planning Support
TASK 300: Inter-Regional Transportation
Planning
310: CAMPO Collaboration X X

320: Local Transit Planning Support
330: Linn-Benton Loop Support
340: Travel Model Coordination
TASK 400: Transportation Programming
410: MTIP Amendments X
420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside
TASK 500: Special Projects (new task in
SFY23)

510: Special Project Pool
520: Special Project Carryover

21
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

80


https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-programs/transportation-planning/2021-planning-emphasis-areas
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-programs/transportation-planning/2021-planning-emphasis-areas

TASK 100: Program Management

110: MPO Operation

120: MPO Administration

130: Annual Document Review

140: MPO Education and Training
TASK 200: Long Range
Transportation Planning

210: Technical Assistance to

Communities

220: AAMPO RTP Performance

Monitoring

230: Regional Count Project

Scoping

240: Safety and Active

Transportation Planning Support
TASK 300: Inter-Regional
Transportation Planning

310: CAMPO Collaboration

320: Local Transit Planning

Support

330: Linn-Benton Loop Support

340: Travel Model Coordination
TASK 400: Transportation
Programming

410: MTIP Amendments

420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside
TASK 500: Special Projects (new task
in SFY23)

510: Special Project Pool

520: Special Project Carryover

>

22

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

81



APPENDIX E: IN-KIND MATCH OVERVIEW

The purpose of this appendix is to outline in-kind match funding as shown in the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2024
Albany Area MPO Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP). The Albany Area MPO Unified Planning Work
Program (UPWP) show the details for the tasks one through five as listed below in the “SFY25 Budget by Fund
Source” table. This table is also included in Section V of the UPWP above.

SFY26 Budget by Fund Source

Task Budget Total PL Funds FTA PL Match Local Match
(Personnel + Non- 5303/SATO Funds (5303/SATO)
Task Payroll + Funds (10.27% from  (Funds and In-
Contracted Staff) ODOT) kind)
Task 100: Program
Management $115,000 $103,190 SO $11,811 SO
Task 200: Long Range
Transportation Planning $45,000 $40,379 SO $4,622 SO
Task 230: Pop Up
Infrastructure 57,500 Y] 57,500 Y] S0
Task 300: Inter-Regional
Transportation Planning $75,000 $12,438 $54,860 $1,424 $6,279
Task 400:
Transportation
Programming $10,000 $8,973 SO $1,027 SO
Task 500: Special
Projects $90,239 $80,972 SO $9,268 SO
Total SFY26 Budget $342,739.32 $245,950.10 $62,360.16 $28,150.09 $6,278.97

The following sections provide additional detail on in-kind match by source.

AAMPO Technical Advisory Committee Meetings

e 9 TAC meetings at 2 hours per meeting.
e 5100/hour loaded rate per staff person.

e S$32.37/hour for elected official volunteer time.

e Total: $9,583

AAMPO TAC MEETINGS

Jurisdiction Loaded rate/hour Rate for nine 2-hour
TAC meeting
Albany $100 $1,800
Millersburg $100 $1,800
Jefferson $32 (elected official) $583
Tangent $100 $1,800
Benton County $100 $1,800
Linn County $100 $1,800
Total | $9,583
23

Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

82




AAMPO Policy Board Meetings

e 9 Policy Board meetings at 2 hours per meeting.
e S$32.37/hour for elected official volunteer time.
e Total: $3,496

AAMPO POLICY BOARD MEETING
Jurisdiction Volunteer rate/hour Rate for nine 2-hour
Policy Board meetings

Albany $32 $583
Millersburg $32 $583
Jefferson $32 $583
Tangent $32 $583
Benton County $32 $583
Linn County (paid) - -
Citizens’ ' $32 4583
Representative

Total | $3,496

Other In-Kind Sources

Albany Transit Match
Provided quarterly by Albany Transit System Business Manager. Includes meetings, document review, and other
tasks. Total of $4,000.

Overall In-Kind Breakdown

Item Amount

9 TAC Meetings $9,583
9 Policy Board Meetings $3,496
Albany Transit Match $4,000

Total | $17,079
In-kind match need for SFY 2026 | TBD

24
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

83



APPENDIX F: SUMMARY OF COMMENTS

See comment tracker following this page.

25
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) SFY 2026

84



	25-03-26 AAMPO Policy Board Agenda
	Attachment A_25-02-26 AAMPO Board Minutes
	Attachment B_All About AAMPO handout PRINT FRIENDLY
	Attachment C_Draft SOW - Salem Ave
	Attachment D_STIP Full Memo
	Attachment E_Joint PPP_2024-25_2.5.25
	Adopting Resolution
	Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Membership
	Policy Board
	Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
	Staff

	Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Membership
	Policy Board
	Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
	TAC Ex-Officio Members
	Staff

	Chapter 1: Introduction
	What is an MPO?
	What is the Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO)?
	What is the Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO)?
	What is the Purpose of the Public Participation Plan?
	Federal and State Requirements for Public Participation
	Plan Development
	What is in this Document?

	Chapter 2: MPO Overview
	MPO Roles and Responsibilities
	Role of Policy Board
	Role of Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

	AAMPO-CAMPO Planning Area
	AAMPO Planning Area
	CAMPO Planning Area
	Organization and Governance

	Chapter 3: Public Participation Process
	Coordination & Consultation
	Accessibility & Information
	Timeliness
	Public Comment
	Social (includes Environmental) Justice
	Evaluation
	Virtual Public Engagement

	Chapter 4: Inclusion of Interested Parties
	Minority and Low Income Populations
	Seniors and Persons with Disabilities
	Transportation Providers
	Federal, State, Regional & Local Government Agencies
	Stakeholder/Special Interest Groups

	Chapter 5: Outreach Activities and Tools
	Public Involvement Tools and Use

	Appendix A: Transportation Acronyms
	Appendix B: Transportation Glossary
	Appendix C: Public Involvement Procedures for MPO Plans and Programs
	Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
	Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan/ Limited English Proficiency Plan
	Public Participation Plan
	 45-Day public comment period, with public notice on website, in local newspaper and in paid advertisements for
	 Provision of draft plan to member jurisdictions with request to make copies available to the public at their offices. Printed copies provided at member jurisdiction libraries for review during public comment period.
	 Presentation of draft plan for review and comment by the MPO member jurisdictions as represented on MPO Policy Board and MPO Technical Advisory Committee. These meetings were open to the public and advertised on the MPO website and listed on publish...

	Appendix D: Spectrum of Public Participation

	Attachment F_AAMPO FY26 UPWP FinalDraft.v6
	Adopted April XX, 2025
	About The Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
	Policy Board
	Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
	TAC Ex-Officio Members
	AAMPO Staff
	Address

	Section I: Introduction
	Section II: Work Program Overview
	Funding Sources and Match Documentation
	Amendments
	Engagement and Process
	Title VI Complaints Procedure

	Federal Performance Based Planning Requirements
	Safety
	Transit
	Summary

	Annual and Semiannual Reporting

	Section III: Planning Tasks
	Task 100 – Program Management
	110 – MPO Operation
	120 – MPO Administration
	130 – Annual Document Review
	140 – MPO Education and Training

	Task 200 – Long Range Transportation Planning
	Task 210: Technical Assistance to Communities
	Task 220: AAMPO RTP Performance Monitoring
	Task 230: Regional Count Project Scoping
	Task 240: Safety and Active Transportation Planning Support
	Product: Technical assistance on relevant topics, meeting participation, and public engagement activities.
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year expected to extend into subsequent fiscal years.


	Task 300 – Inter-Regional Transportation Planning,
	Task 310 – CAMPO Collaboration
	Task 320 – Local Transit Planning Support
	Task 330: Linn-Benton Loop Support
	Task 340: Travel Model Coordination

	Task 400 – Transportation Programming
	410 – MTIP Amendments

	Task 500 – Special Projects
	Task 510: Special Project Pool
	Task 520: Special Project Carryover


	Section IV: Budget summary
	SFY26 Budget by Subtask
	SFY26 Budget by Fund Source
	SFY26 Expenses

	Appendix A: AAMPO Planning Area and Inter-regional map
	Appendix B: Other Transportation Planning Activities in the MPO Area
	Appendix C: Glossary of Acronyms
	Appendix D: FHWA and FTA Joint Planning Emphasis Areas
	Appendix E: in-Kind Match Overview
	SFY26 Budget by Fund Source
	AAMPO Technical Advisory Committee Meetings
	AAMPO Policy Board Meetings
	Other In-Kind Sources
	Overall In-Kind Breakdown

	Appendix F: Summary of Comments




